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out the consent of Congress and to this day without the
consent of Congress, I declare that to send our troops to
support such a reactionary government, which was op-
pressing the people of Korea, I say that was wrong. I said
that would result in tragedy for us, in the loss of thousands
[fol. 2059] of our men and in the destruction of the coun-
try of Korea six thousand miles away from us, and I called
for opposition to the war openly in this article. I believe
in the best democratic tradition I urged the American peo-
ple to express themselves in letters to their Congressmen
saying they don’t want their sons to be sent to Korea to
fight there in defense of this government of Syngman
Rhee and to ask Congress to reject this and to call back our
troops who had been sent there in the face of no declaration
of war, and I ended by declaring, and I quote: ‘‘That this
is the duty of patriotic Americans today’’—and in saying
that, I said, ‘‘That a person who loves this land and its
people; a person who seeks dignity and equality and jus-
tice must join the ranks of Thoreau, Emerson, Lowell, Whit-
tier, of Lincoln and Douglass, of Mark Twain and Howells,
Randolph Bourne and Debs.”” And I went on to say:
‘‘Kach denounced robber war in his day and each is hon-
ored for it today.”” That is what I said.

I went on to say that in the past other unjust wars had
been condemned even by State Legislatures like Rhode
Island, Vermont and Massachusetts and even by the House
of Representatives of the United States which, after the
Mexican War, adopted a resolution as denouncing it as
unconstitutional. I said then that our duty was to oppose
an unjust war while it was fought, not after the men were
dead and buried. I said that it was more important to do
that because it involved some dangers, some difficulties that
[fol. 2060] one might be denounced, that one might even
be jailed but I said that this is what I believed and I wrote
this openly, in the open light of day. I spread it, I wrote
it then, I hold it with it today, and I am proud that I wrote
this article.

The Court: We will recess at this time until 1:15 P.M.

Noon recess.
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[fol. 20611 Friday, January 18th, 1952.
Afternoon session.

Dr. Herbert Aptheker, resumes the stand and testifies
further as follows:

Direct examination:

Mr. Nelson:

Q. Now the article which you explained to the Jury, which
you wrote about the Korean situation characterized that as
an unjust war. Is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. It means you were opposed to it and so were the Com-
munists in the United States, is that right?

A. That is correct.

Q. What were the means that you proposed to use to
carry through the opposition to that war?

A. Means of persuasion, letters, petitions, meetings,
against those, such as that article, to spread that as widely
as we could to convince the American people that our point
of view was correct and to try to carry it to a certain pres-
sure on the majority, to a certain pressure on the Legisla-
ture and Congress and through these means to halt what we
felt to be an unjust war.

Q. Did the Communist Party ask for the overthrow of the
Government because of this particular war—that is, ad-
vanced the policy which brought us into that war?

[fol. 2062] A. No. There was no mention of overthrow-
ing of any Government.

Q. In other words, the opposition insisted in the idea of
convincing our fellow Americans it was a long war and
wanted to see it stopped?

A. That is correct.

Q. Now the prosecution would not read from the article
this time they chose to read last year, at any rate, the wit-
ness Musmanno did. This year they didn’t read it, do you
suppose it is because up to now 70 per cent of the people
were opposed to the war?
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Mr. Cercone: That is objected to.
The Court: The objection is sustained. Note an exception.
It is all in the record.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. However, the cartoon appearing in the magazine in
the midst of your article was shown to the Jury. Will you
please explain the meaning to the Jury as you understand
it.

A. The cartoon which is rather clearly labeled tries to
convey the idea that it is an unjust war, because the United
States Imperialism is as we have attempted to define that
term, Bourgeoise, the monopoly capitalists as seeking to
perpetuate in Korea a very reactionary regime, a puppet
regime to maintain by force and terrorism control over
[fol. 2063] Korea for the profit and benefit of imperialism of
the monopoly capitalists. This is the meaning of this
cartoon.

Q. Now the prosecution witness Cvetic stated in this
courtroom that the Communists make appeals to the Negro
people because, as he said, they want to use the Negro peo-
ple—that was the term used, the Negro people. What is
your explanation concerning that, Dr. Aptheker? What
would be your answer to that, using the Negro people as
related here by the stool-pidgeon Cvetic.

Mr. Cercone: I object to the word ‘‘stool-pidgeon.?’’
The Court: Strike out that part being ‘‘stool-pidgeon.’’

A. 1T would make the following two points under the re-
mark by Mr. Cvetic. First of all, the Communist Party con-
sists of people of all colors and origin in this country. There
are Negro people in the Communist Party and there are
White people. The Negro people in the Party have the full
authority and the right, the full privileges, of course, and
the full influence within the Party in making its policy, in
working out its program as do the White people in the
Party. So to attempt to contrast an account of the Commu-
nist Party itself between its White and its Negro members,
they are using one another is completely false to the nature
of the Party most of all. The second point I would make to
such a remark to that of Mr. Cvetic, is that his remark indi-
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[fol. 2064] cates an arrogance and a chovinism and a White
supremacy point of view which if it had not been present
would not have led him to say that the Communist Party or
any other or anybody is using the Negro people.

The clear implication of such an idea is that the Negro
people are children or fools or clowns or have no mind of
their own and are being subjected to use by somebody. Un-
less somebody so thought of the Negro people he could not
present this, as the use of such a concept is arrogance
supremesists, racists, and in that sense is directly against
the classes of Marxist-Leninism and the principles of the
Communist Party.

Q. Will you briefly then, Dr. Aptheker, explain what is
the program of the Communist Party of the United States
in relation to the Negro question briefly, because there were
inferences made by the prosecution that our program is
other than what they say it is on the Negro question. Would
you please state it briefly?

Mr. Cercone: I object to that, your Honor. We are going
to object to that as highly irrelevant in the matter.

The Court: I think it is permissible. One of the witnesses
said he was in the Party and their policy was different. And
he has a right to bring out any information to rebut that
statement.

[fol. 20651 A. It is not an easy question to answer briefly
but I will do the best I can. I would say that there are four
fundamental parts to the position of the Communist Party
as concerns the Negro people. These four are: first, com-
plete political equality of the Negro people in the United
States now. Second, complete economic equality in therms
of jobs, professions, wages and when hired in unions. There
is complete economic equality of the Negro people now.
Third, complete social equality of the Negro people now, no
ghettos, no restrictive covenants, no restaurants only for
white people, no waiting rooms only for white people. The
Party, Marxism-Leninism, abhors and denounces any dis-
play of racism and demands and through those struggles for
complete social equality of the Negro people now. Fourth:
essential covenant is in the idea of self determination for the
Negro people, particularly as we related to that area in the
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South where they form a majority of the population and
have formed a majority of the population for many years.

Self determination, that is exactly what it means for the
Negro people, to determine for themselves what they want.
It is a blueprint for nothing. It blueprints nothing. It is the
logical extension of the struggles of the Negro peoples them-
selves for full equality, socially, politically and economically
and in those areas where they are in a majority and his-
torical enslavements and held as Peons, denied their politi-
cal rights. This is wrong. They should have all rights and
[fol. 2066] not having such rights they should determine for
themselves democratically what they want. The Negro
Governors, if this is correct, is what they want when in the
majority, and they want Negro senators and didn’t want
restrictions. They want Negro sheriffs, Negro legislatures,
men to represent the Negro people. There would be White
legislatures, too, but now there is only White there. This is
non-democratic. It is wrong. It is a reflection of the lack
of equality. We insist on the right of self determination.
This, I believe, within five minutes 1s an accurate summary
of the Communist Party on the Negro question.

Q. Doctor Aptheker, of course you are familiar with the
general program of the Communist Party in the United
States as well as when its theoretical position which you ex-
pounded here, are you not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I mean the day to day program, the program the Party
advances. Would you briefly summarize that as you did
now in relation to the Negro conditions, because the prose-
cution here attempted to say that the Party was only inter-
ested for ulterior motives. Will you explain the Communist
Party’s position and what we stand for and how we fight
for it?

A. Once again to answer that it is not very easy. The day
to day program of the Communist Party as indicated in
what it publishes, what it says, and as indicated in its work,
includes such things as the struggle to obtain the rights for
the Negro people.

[fol. 2067] For example, which I tried to make clear in
my previous answer. It includes efforts to get Congress,
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or in various States, State Legislature to pass fair em-
ployment practice act, which act would prohibit diserimina-
tion by employers on the basis of color, nationality or
religion and so on. It struggled and has struggled to bene-
fit the unemployed, for example, it did struggle for unem-
ployment insurance and it is always in the forefront of
all efforts by the unemployed to make the conditions of
life, to make them somewhat less endurable than they are.
The Communist Party is always in the forefront in move-
ments to protest high prices or high rents, in movements to
pass legislation to curb price increases, because such price
increases hurt normally the people with small incomes.

The Communist Party always leads in such civie effort
as more schools and better schools and more teachers and
higher pays for teachers and other several service workers.

The Party pursues efforts to organize the working class
and trade unions, and the Party leaders, most notably, of
course William Z. Foster. Many such Party leaders have
devoted practically their entire lives unselfishly in an
effort to assist the working class to form unions, thereby
being in a better bargaining position with the bosses.

The Communist Party has led in programs which it
thinks would help farming business, all sorts of programs
and the price a farmer gets for his erop and the methods
by which he sells his crop and the produce.

[fol. 2068] The Communist Party in my experience, to
my own knowledge, leads in the fight against any restriction
of civil liberties in this Country, for example, it opposes
loyalty oaths which in its view are of a witch-hunt char-
acter, of a character to introduce fear into the hearts of
the American people so they begin to fear one another, or
they fear somebody is looking into the plans to see what they
are thinking. They think somebody is looking into their
brains to see what they are thinking. The Party opposes
this. It does this as we pledge our pamphlets, and I have
written pamphlets devoted to the subject and tried to con-
vince whoever reads the pamphlets, and it is a violation
of the civil rights and freedom of speech. It is wrong and
for all of us. These are some of the day to day efforts.
Anything which diseriminates, which oppresses, which
causes hardship, evictions to discrimination against the
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Negro people. This constitutes this and this is the day to
day work of the Party and has been.

Now in terms of the other question which you asked,
Mr. Nelson, as to the possible ulterior motive. This is
related to the first question you put to me this afternoon
in terms of using in that case the Negro people. Because
they who charge ulterior motives insist that while some
of the things may be all right they will say that the Party
wants like no discrimination, they will say ‘“Well, some
things may be all right but you are using those things in
[fol. 2069] order to inveigle your way into some peoples’
hearts or some group and just using them and their feel-
ing of bitterness in order to mislead.’’

Now the first answer to that is, as I answered your last
question, it is a very arrogant attitude, a very snobbish
attitude that there are people who are a bunch of puppets
and fools and don’t think and can’t think and we come in
there and use them. And by using them we have our own
interest for our ulterior purposes. Such an argument
can come from only one whose mind is affected with
snob-ists and class arrogance. That is the first. And the
second thing is the whole point of the Party in its day to
day struggle is that the movement is a majority move-
ment. As I have said and say again, it is a movement to
convince the majority of the people that our point of view
is right and that our interests are their interests, that we
have no separation. Now if you are going to be con-
vinced of this and the people are reasonable—we don’t
believe people are stupid—they are reasonable and under-
stand and we go to them and we mean to convince them
of our righteousness, our correctness in this position. We
go to show we are sincere, that we are fighting for them
and for ourselves. The whole idea of the ulterior motive
is planned with and contrary to the whole spirit and the
program of the Communist Party.

Q. The Communist Party participates and has partici-
pated in elect-ral campaigns, has it not, amongst these
points you mentioned just previously?

[fol. 2070] A. Yes, of course, the Communist Party have
had candidates for President, Governor or for Senator,

67—10
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Councilman, and it is a political party and has been and
has a program and its candidates campaign and issues
leaflets and it tries to get people to vote for its candidates.
Q. And at times it supports people on other tickets?
A. Yes, there are times that it has.

Q. Even people not Communists and anti-Communists?

A. Yes. It is doubtful there are people who are not in
support of the Party and there are candidates who are
not Communists.

Mr. Nelson: May we approach the desk?
The Court: Come forward.

Mr. Nelson: Your Honor, I have just received a trans-
cript of the Crouch testimony, and looking through it
hurriedly this noon time I was able to see that most of
the statements that were made by him have been answered,
that is statements in reference to theory and those kind
of questions and it would take time to go into them and I
am willing to go into it, but I frankly feel the questions
have been squarely met already. And Mr. Crouch in-
[fol. 2071] troduced three pamphlets which I called atten-
tion to during the close of the trial. One was ‘‘The Pro-
gram of the Communist International; the other one was
a pamphlet: ‘‘High Communism’’ by Olgin. And the
third was one by Peters. Those three pamphlets have
not been used by the Communist Party to the best of my
knowledge since 1930. And they have been repudiated and
the distortions that were quoted from them were for the
convenience of the prosecution to make it more prejudicial
and make it appear and that my organization is subversive
as he claims it was.

The Court: You can ask this witness on those points
if you wish.

Mr. Nelson: I want to do that before I wind up some
general questions I have.

The Court: You can ask him if they had been in use and
approved: And as far as Crouch’s testimony is concerned
it is up to you whether or not you want to qualify it. He
has answered everything so far as theory is concerned.
[fol. 2072] Mr. Nelson: There was reference about a so-
called school.
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The Court: You can turn this witness over for cross
examination at any stage and engage him in redirect.

Mr. Nelson : One more request, your Honor—I think there
is an agreement on that but I want Mr. Cercone to give
me permission, both in the place where the material or
letteris. I have no chance to take advantage of the material.

The Court: Yes, if you can have someone present.

Mr. Cercone: I was there last Saturday when Mr. Dolsen
was in.

The Court: You will provide someone be present from
nine to twelve.

Mr. Nelson: Let us agree for tomorrow morning at any-
time.

The Court: Would it suit you tomorrow morning or
afternoon?

Mr. Cercone: No.

[fol. 2073] The Court: Could you have someone else
present?

Mr. Cercone: We could do that this afternoon. I can come
back at six or seven o’clock tonight. I would like to leave
about 2:45.

The Court: Make it at seven o’clock tonight and Mr. Cer-
cone will meet you in the District Attorney’s office.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. Now the prosecution witness, Crouch, testified here to
the effect that there was a certain school held in Qakland,
California, in 1941 and that certain pamphlets were used
in that school. Do you know whether or not a pamphlet in-
troduced by Crouch in this trial here, the name of the pro-
gram of the CI, whether that has been used in the Party
since you have been a member? You have been a member
since 19391
Yes, sir.

Do you know anything about it?

Yes.

Do you know anything about it?

. The program or the CI?

Yes.

. No. That is one of the pamphlets which was rejected
by the Party for many years before I had become a member

>OPOPOP
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[fol. 2074] of the Party. Iknow it was not used by the Party
since that time, since 1939.

Q. When you say it was rejected, by that do you mean the
American Communist Party didn’t feel that that particular
program was applicable to the United States-—is that what
you mean?

A. That is right.

Q- Do you know or have you heard any reference to an-
other pamphlet introduced by Crouch called ‘A Movement
and Organization by Peters?’’ Was that used since you
have been a member of the Party or do you know if it was
at anytime used?

A. It hasn’t been used at anytime in the Party since my
membership, but I haven’t heard of it since 1939.

Q. Why not?

Mr. Cercone: That is objected to.
The Court: I think the objection is well taken. He is not
acquainted and he wouldn’t know why it was not used.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. But you haven’t seen it since you have been a member?

A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know of a pamphlet called ‘‘High Commu-
nism’’ by Olgin?

A. Yes, I know of that pamphlet.

Q. Do you know if it has been used while you are a mem-
ber or while you have been a member?
[fol. 2075] A. No, sir. I don’t believe it has been.

Q. Why was that pamphlet not used by the Party?

Mr. Cercone: That is objected to on the same grounds.

The Court: He said he doesn’t believe it has been used
so I imagine his information is very limited on that and the
reasons for its disuse, the disuse wouldn’t probably be
within the knowledge of the witness, and I wouldn’t have
him conjecture on it.

The Court:

Q. Am I correct in my statement, Doctor, that you are
limited in your information on that?
A. T think so, yes.
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Q. Now these are brief questions that I would like to have
you comment on. You are qualified to state your opinion.
What is the organizational structure of the Communist
Party of the United States?

A. Well, it consists of a national headquarter-, of a na-
tional body and a state-wide body and of local bodies con-
nected to the state, the states of the nation, very much like
other political bodies or other national organizations. This
[fol. 2076] is especially the structural outline of the organ-
ization of the Communist Party.

Q. How is the program worked out and arrived at in the
Party?

A. Tt is arrived at and worked out by the Party members,
by the Party leaders very collectively. It is arrived at
through discussion in local groups and state groups and
national groups and committees, by leaders and by the
whole bodies of the members. There are conventions which
are held in which further discussions go on. There are con-
ventions and discussions about various conditions and about
which there is a variety of opinion-. These are resolved in
terms of the state and terms of majority agreement that
this is ecorrect and isn’t correct. This is the manner of arriv-
ing at the program of policies and ideas of the Party
Organization.

Q. How is the national leadership elected or selected or
how is that worked out?

A. It is selected by a body of the members of the Commu-
nist Party.

Q. You mean at conventions?

A. That is correct. There are regular bi-annual conven-
tions provided for in the Constitution of the Organization
when delegates are elected to that by the whole body of the
Organization, and various officers of the Organization are
elected at the convention.

Q. When was the last national convention held, to your
knowledge?

A. In 1950 I believe, in December. It seems to me 1950.
[fol. 2077] Q. Where was that held?

A. New York City.
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Q. Was this convention known or was it a publicly adver-
tised convention?

A. Yes, sir, it was known and advertised.

Q. What is your comment on the statement of several of
the witnesses here that the Communist Party is a foreign
dominated organization or an agent of a foreign power?

A. Thisis false. The Communist Party is a political party
of the United States. It is dominated by nobody but its
members. It is an American Party and it strives for Social-
ism fundamentally on the basis of the American History and
the needs and the desire of the American people.

Q. What is your comment or explanation that the Com-
munist Party is a secret organization?

A. This is a false accusation. The Communist Party is
a political party, its leadership is known. Its conventions
have been held publicly. Its publications are broadcast as
widely as possible. Where there is in terms of the Party
differences, it is natural where there is any element of
secrecy involved, in terms for example, of an individual
member—this is not really — was done—I mean it is not
happily done. Itisa consequence of persecution or pressure
of a person, let us say, having a doubt, if a person is known
to be a union member and is being fired. Most organiza-
tions didn’t speak of organizations like the Knights of
[fol. 2078] Labor. They were faced with such prosecution
and there have been instances of the Party’s people for
broadcasting and their membership, but this is the only
instance which is to me — perfectly logical approach and
it is clear on that type of thing. But the Party as a whole
is an open organization seeking reform and seeking
socialism.

Q. Doctor, would you please tell the Jury what is your
interest in this case? What I mean by that is, some of the
prosecution witnesses are getting paid for what they are
saying here. What is your purpose in coming here and tes-
tifying—what is your purpose?

A. Well, there are quite a few purposes. First, I want
to do what I can, Mr. Nelson, to help you. I am a friend of
yours and we have known each other for quite a few years.

Mr. Cercone: Your Honor, may I have a side bar confer-
ence. I want to ask one question.
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The Court: Come forward.

Mr. Cercone: I submit that the purpose of this witness is
absolutely indicated by his testimony. I mean I think it is
wrong for him to summarize what his testimony indicates
for a purpose. That is for the Jury to decide on that. He
has been here three days and certainly his purpose is re-
[fol. 2079] vealed in his testimony.

Mr. Nelson: It is the last question I had, your Honor.

The Court: He can ask and T think we will let him go. He
could go far afield and express a lot of things if that’s his
purpose but I think we will risk that.

Mr. Nelson: That is the last question.

The Court: You may continue, Doctor.

A. In explaining my interest in the case I began by saying
there were many factors which we mean here to justify.
One is, because I know and respect and admire Mr. Nelson
and his family, and I believe

The Court: Not your belief. We will have to limit you on
what you believe. You are here and interested in him and
his family?

A. Yes, and T wish to assist in his success. 1 am here
also because I am devoted to the principles of Marxism and
Leninism, and to the principles of my Party, and because
both principles which I hold, dearer than my life. T am very
eager to defend these principles, the principles that have
been brought into Court that have been, I believe, I think
[fol. 2080] distorted and in terms of this prosecution and
since this is my whole life T have come to defend Mr. Nelson
and defend the integrity of Marxism-Leninism and of my
Party. I believe that in defending him and the Party T am
defending the best interests of my family.

The Court: I think we will have to limit you.
A. And my people and of my country.
The Court: We will have to limit you on that.

A. T say we have involved here

The Court : I will have to limit you and strike out the last
remark. I told you originally I wouldn’t permit you to in-
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dulge or express a belief and argue the case. That is a mat-
ter for the defendant after.

A. T didn’t know I was doing that. I am sorry.

The Court: That is all right. I accept your explanation.
However, any other interest or motive or your belief in con-
nection any ideas of the prosecution or demonstration of it
[fol. 2081] T think is beyond the realm of the question.

A. May I say here that one of my basic interests is that
I wish to defend civil liberties and beliefs such as involved
here, and this is another of my interests in testifying in this
case.

The Court:

Q. The Party’s interest and the civil liberties and the in-
terest of the defendant. Anything else?

A. Yes, and the further point that I think is involved here
is the struggle for the people. I believe it is for the people
and the interests of my country as the American people.

Mr. Nelson: You may cross examine.
Mr. Cercone: Your Honor, may we have about a five min-
ute recess?
The Court: Yes, we will grant you that privilege at this
time.
Cross-examination.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now what is your full name again?

A. Herbert Aptheker.

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Aptheker?

A. In Brooklyn, New York.
[fol. 2082] Q. What address is that?

A. 1015 Washington Avenue.

Q. Were you born there?

A. Not at that address. I was born at Brooklyn, New
York.

Q. Have you lived there all your life?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now you say you are a Communist, is that right?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And you have been a Communist for quite a long time
now?

A. Since 1939.

Q. Would you tell us the exact place and the exact date
that you became a Communist?

A. No, no, because I don’t remember. I can give some
advice. It was in New York City and the exact date I don’t
know, that is in the sense of the day and the month.

Q. Which unit in the City did you join?

A. Tdidn’t join a unit as such. I was a member and I had
membership in a local neighborhood group, a neighborhood
section.

Q. And do you recall the name of the organizer or this
unit of that area?

Mr. Nelson: I object, your Honor. This goes back ten or
twelve years and what light is that going to throw on the
question. He admits he is a member of the Party and this
is only a means of attempting to involve the witness by the
[fol. 2083] prosecution and I think it is wrong.

The Court: Very well. We will sustain the objection.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. All right, you said you have been a member of the
Communist Party since 1939, and of course having been a
member that long you are familiar with the national offices
of the Communist Party. Is that right?

A. T know several.

Q. Now you spoke of William Z. Foster—you know him
to be the national chairman of the organization?

A. That is right.

Q. Now do you know that Mr. Foster went to Russia
many times on behalf of the Communist Party of the United
States?

Mr. Nelson: I object to that, the way the question is
placed. If he wants to know if Mr. Foster went to Russia
that would be one question. He doesn’t know on what behalf
he went there.

The Court: If he knows.

Mr. Nelson: It is sort of a loaded question.

[fol. 2084] The Court: Break it into two parts.
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. You know he went to Russia many times?

A. That is a matter of public record, of course.

Q. Then he went there to attend the Seventh World Con-
gress of the Communist International. Is that right?

A. Tbelieve that is true.

Q. Well, you know that is true?

A. Yes, I think it is true.

Q. And he was accompanied by many, many members of
the Communist Party of the United States at that time?

A. T don’t know.

Mr. Nelson: That is objeeted to, your Honor.

The Court: If he knows. It is the connection of the
Communist Party of the United States with the Communist
International for the Communists of other countries. It
has been touched on and I think this witness can be in-
terrogated of his knowledge of the subject.

A. The fact is of my answer, I don’t know that.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Have you learned that from your studies of the Com-
munist Party?
[fol. 2085] A. I think it is the fact that he went there and
I went with him.

The Court:

Q. What did you say, the Seventh World Congress of
the Communist International?
A. Yes.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. And of course, as a mascot?

A. Yes.

Q. And it was held in 19357

A. Yes.

Q. Is that the last World Congress of the Communist
International ?

A. Yes.

Q. That is, 1935 was the last one?
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A. That is right.

Q. Then you have testified here at length, for almost two
days about your great knowledge on Communist organiza-
tions and Marxist-Leninist theory and as a Communist you
advocate the seizure of private property, namely, the rail-
roads. Is that right?

A. I will wait until you have finished your question.

Q. That is right. Do you include railroads in your pro-
gram?

A. The way you placed the question, it will not do jus-
tice to the Jury if I answered it yes or no.

Q. Well, that is my question.

[fol. 2086] The Court: Well, strike out railroads and limit
it to the first part of the question. What was the question
before you without the specific example?

Mr. Nelson: Your Honor, that is objected to because of
the term used ‘‘seizure’’. Did he mean justifiable seizure?

Mr. Cercone: I just used the word seizure.

The Court: Answer the question. I think it is a fair
question, Doctor.

A. You can alter the wording as you may understand it.
Seizure may mean confiscation or taking over.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. If T may clear this up. You testified yourself dur-
ing two days railroads were included in the program, you
were going to seize or confiscate the railroads?

A. 1 didn’t say that and please don’t surmise what I
said.

Q. Tell us what you said. Will you first answer the
question so we don’t get into twenty questions.

Q. Does your program advocate the seizure of railroads?
I think that is the substance of it. It may not be as exten-
sive as that but I think it is the substance.

A. The long term program of the Communist Party is
Socialist
[fol. 20871 Q. Just a minute. Don’t give me all of that
business again.

A. If we discuss social science I can’t answer yes or no.

Q. Did you, as a Communist, and the members of the Com-
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munist Party, did you advocate the seizure of private
property?

A. I repeat that it is impossible to answer such a ques-
tion yes or no and do justice to the purpose of clarity.

The Court:

Q. Answer yes or no and then explain for the purposes
of clarity, Doctor?

A. T will then say no, because when it is put to me you
are a Communist advocate for seizure, this question is so
verbally loaded.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. It is very plain English. It is in very plain English
language?

A. If you will permit me to answer the question I will
appreciate your courtesy, sir. It is so verbally loaded that
if T answered any other way it would be falsifying it be-
cause the program, the program of the Communist Party
in the United States doesn’t include in it nowhere in the
program of the Communist Party of the USA, is there any
mention of seizure of railroads or any other private prop-
erty. There is mention in the program of the Communist
Party itself for Socialism. Now in terms of your ques-
[fol. 2088] tion this means that the Communist Party be-
lieves that a Socialist economy is a better one, more produc-
tive, better for people than a capitalist one and that a so-
cialist economy brought about by the majority of the peo-
ple would result in the collective socialism for certain
means of product. That is the way I would answer the
question.

Q. That includes railroads?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I show you the Manifesto, Commonwealth’s HExhibit
15 and direct your attention to this sentence. This sentence
says in a word of reproach that you intended to do away
with the property and you said precisely so. That is just
what we intend.

Mr. Nelson: Well, that, your Honor, was answered.
The Court: This is cross examination and I will have to
refuse your objection and he can answer it again.
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. I direct your attention to page 23 of that same ex-
hibit and direct your attention to that sentence and it says
in this sense the theory of the Communist may be summed
up in a single sentence, abolition of private property.

The Court: You want to impose a question based on two
of those excerpts?

[fol. 2089] Mr. Cercone:

Q. Just a minute. My question to you based on those
two sentences of the Manifesto and based on your own tes-
timony yesterday that you, as a Communist advocate the
seizing of private property. Is that right?

A. No. May I have the exhibit, please?

Q. Yes.

(Exhibit handed to the witness.)

A. T have in my hand a 103 year old pamphlet. It would
have helped if you gave the same sentence, Mr. Cercone.

Q. It is on page 23 and 25.

A. I answered your extraction of this in my direct testi-
mony. I pointed out that in 1848 Marx and Engels wrote
a sentence reading in this sense: the theory of the Com-
munist may be summed up in a single sentence, abolition
of the private property. Mr. Cercone read again. He
put—he then read another sentence I think also was in the
indictment excerpt. He just said also from this pamphlet
in a word you reproach us for intending to do away with
your property, precisely so; that is just what we intend.
That is from page 25 of the Communist Manifesto. In my
reply yesterday to this direct question I pointed out to the
Jury that the first quote, the first sentence started in this
sense—in what sense. The previous paragraph tells us
the abolition of the private property. The next one says
[fol. 2090] you reproach us, did you?—Who is you? The
context tells us immediately it is a Bourgeoise.

The monopolists, capitalists and you.

Now in answer to Mr. Cercone’s question which I have to
do in this way in order to get around it, the distortion of
leaving out the Bourgeoise, the class concept. I say then
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and I say again that this sums up in a sentence the So-
cialist vista of the Communist movement, the long range
program of this movement could be arrived at by majority
decision when the people in the majority control the Gov-
ernment and they vote and they desire to eliminate Bour-
geoise property as in another case as they desired and
voted to eliminate slavery property. This is the full an-
swer to that property.

Q. All right. What is Bourgeoise property?

A. I have already defined Bouregoise property and will
do so again.

Q. Define it again.

A. To understand it I define Bourgeoise property that
is Bourgeoise property. The Bourgeoise in a system con-
sists of the owners of the means of production, that is, to
be specific, the few, the handful who control the great fac-
tories, the great meat resources and the means of produc-
tion, the means of producing.

Q. You are not answering the question. What I want
to know, what is Bourgeoise property?

A. T have just about finished answering the question.
The property which I just defined in my answer, Mr. Cer-
cone, is Bourgeoise property.

[fol. 2091] Q. Well, just what does it include, the real
property, what does it include?

A. The great factories, the mines and so forth.

Q. All right, so you are going to try to take the great
factories, mine factories, automobile factories, the tele-
vision factories, the radio system, the telephone system and
telegraph system and the water powers and you are going
to take that. Ts that right?

A. No.

Q. What are you going to do?

A. No. I answered it several times. For example, 1
live in New York City, the subway city in New York City
is owned by the city and by the people of New York City.
This was not seized. It was a democratic construction and
will of the people of New York. This is something I have
in mind and can’t be conveyed, it isn’t to seize property.

Q. You say you are not going to seize the property?

A. T have said that.
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Q. You have also stated on a question from this defend-
ant as to whether or not you ever knew anybody in the Com-
munist Party of the United States who advocates force
and violence?

A. T answered this question negatively.

Q. And you said no, is that right?

A. That is right.

Q. Do you know William Z. Foster?

A. 1 do.
[fol. 2092] Q. And do you know he advocated violence?

A. No.

Q. Do you know when he ran for the Presidency of the
United States he advocated violence?

A. No.

Q. You don’t know that?

A. No. What year do you have reference to?

Q. The last time he ran?

A. What was that?

Q. When?

A. T think 1932.

Q. You know, don’t you, when he was a candidate for

the United States as President he said that the Communist

Party would come into power not through election but by
force of the Red Army?

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to.
The Court: The objection is sustained unless you are
prepared to follow it up.

Q. Do you know if William Z. Foster made that state-
ment? Do you know that?

A. No.

Q. You don’t know that?

A. No.

Q. I am going to show you Mr. Foster’s statement before
[fol. 2093] the Investigation Body before the House of
Congress, investigating Communist activities in the United
States and Mr. Foster?

The Court: You will have to ask the witness first if he
is acquainted with that before you read or quote from it.

Mr. Nelson: I think the answer is he wasn’t acquainted
with such a statement.
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Mr. Cercone: He said Mr. Foster never advocated force
and violence.

The Court: Ask if he is acquainted with the paper.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Are you acquainted with this testimony before the
House?

A. No. This is back in 1932, do you say?

Q. No—this is 1932, that is right.

A. 19327 I am not acquainted with this.

Q. I am going to show you this. Just refer your atten-
tion to that. I want you to look at that.

A. Just look at it?

Q. Mr. Foster was asked a question.

The Court: He says he don’t know anything about it and
you can’t read anything he doesn’t know about as a matter
[fol. 2094] of proof by him. If you want to contradict you
may in rebuttal.

Mr. Nelson: He didn’t testify to these things.

Mr. Cercone: He said he didn’t know of any member of
the Communist Party who advocated force and violence.

The Court: He still says he doesn’t know and you will
have to prove it. It isn’t subject to cross examination when
he doesn’t know anything about it.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Have you heard of Gus Hall?

A. Yes.

Q. Who is he?

A. He is a leading member of the Communist Party.

Mr. Nelson: Your Honor, may we approach the bar at
side bar.

The Court: Yes, you may.

Mr. Nelson: Your Honor, I think that the prosecution
is attempting to smuggle in some prejudicial material
[fol. 2095] against me here because he knows that Mr. Gus
Hall is in jail and there was a lot of publicity connected
around his name and so forth and it is contending to convey
the impression I ought to be put in the same place.
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The Court: If you hadn’t told me I wouldn’t know it
myself.

Mr. Nelson: I want to call it to your attention but I think
he knows.

Mr. Cercone: He asked yesterday if any members of
the Communist Party advocated force and violence and
you have a right to testify.

The Court: Ask if he knows.

Mr. Nelson: What about the question of him being in
jail?

The Court: That doesn’t have to be brought out.

Mr. Cercone: I want to show he was convicted for advo-
cating force and violence.

Mr. Nelson: That isn’t true. He was the CIO organizer
[fol. 2096] at that time.

Mr. Cercone: We got to show that and it is absolutely
pertinent and he was a member of the Party. We never
brought it in our case on direct. He opened the way.

The Court: You are not going to put that in by way of
Gus’s statement. I have been trying to prevent that.
You may ask the witness if he knows Gus Hall. You may
ask the witness if he knows of the activities or any state-
ments and ask him if he knows whether or not he, at
anytime, advocated force and violence.

Mr. Nelson: What about myself?

Mr. Cercone: Ask if he was convicted of force and vio-
lence? I will have to show that? The way is opened.
We didn’t bring it in. He brought it in.

Mr. Nelson: But what Mr. Cercone has in mind, there
was a strike around Youngstown and Mr. Hall was the
regional director under Mr. Murray and Good, and he
was arrested and certain organizers arrested charged with
[fol. 2097] violation of the picket lines, which also always
occur in the course of strikes and that is what he has in
mind.

The Court: Leave out the word ‘‘arrest’” and ‘‘violence
and force’’. He can answer if he knows. I am limiting
him on it. This witness is subject to cross examination
on whether or not he knows anybody using force and vio-
lence and if these are instances where people are charged

68—10
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and if he knows he can be out. I don’t think we ought to
get into the conviction set-up.

Mr. Cercone: We never brought it in our case but since
he brought it in we have a right.

The Court: It goes to his credibility, the idea of his
opinion as an expert.

Mr. Cercone: He has spoken for the whole Party and
everything.

The Court: You can develop that if he knows the activities
of certain individuals. You can develop that and ask
if he knows Gus Hall’s activities and whether or not
[fol. 2098] he engaged in the use of force and if he says
no you cannot proceed.

Mr. Cercone: He can say no to every question. I can
say he was charged with it.

The Court: You can ask him if he was charged with
force and violence.

Mr. Nelson: There was no overt act charged.

The Court: You can ask him about specific instances of
people charged with force and violence and if he knows
he can explain himself.

Mr. Cercone: Can’t I bring in the fact he was convicted
of it? It is clearly within the scope of the question.

Mr. Nelson: Are you trying people in New York City
or trying people here?

Mr. Cercone: I am not going into the facts.

[fol. 2099] The Court: I don’t know what the charge was.

Mr. Nelson: Do you have in mind the Smith Act case?

Mr. Cercone: They are charged with force and violence.

Mr. Nelson: It is not true.

The Court: You can establish that fact or you will have
to produce some other evidence on it.

Mr. Cercone: He can say he doesn’t know.

The Court: Are you going to say he does know. That
isn’t in evidence and you can’t read what somebody else
said.

Mr. Cercone. He goes on the stand as an expert and I
can confront him with somebody else’s opinion.

Mr. Nelson: I want to get this clear. This man testified
and gave an explanation and interpretation of the theory,
program and activities and I can’t see how this man or
any other witness should be questioned about other trials
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[fol. 2100] taking place or that may have taken place.
What does that have to do with my case here?

The Court: Its prominent people are concerned with
the program of using force or advocating violence?

Mr. Nelson: I can ask whether or not you charge or ad-
vocated or charged with doing it.

Mr. Nelson: A lot of people could be charged with a
lot of things.

Mr. Cercone: You are asking the question if members
of the Communist Party did.

Mr. Nelson: I asked the question and he answered it.
It has nothing to do with us if other people are arrested
and charged and there is a hysteria.

The Court: You asked the question if he knew anybody
who used force and violence.

Mr. Nelson: If it goes to the question of arrest, your
Honor, I don’t know the law.

The Court: You will have to first give this man an op-
portunity to see if he knows the situation. You can’t
[fol. 2101] read into the record of certain things that
happened to other individuals and he is not acquainted with.

Mr. Cercone: The matter of the first question is does
he know Gus Hall advocated force and violence. Do
you mean to say he is going to say yes?

The Court: I don’t know.

Mr. Nelson: If he was arrested and charged. Does that
mean that is a fact?

The Court: It is affecting his credibility. He says he
don’t know anybody who used it. Go ahead and ask a few
questions. You can enter an objection. Leave out the
nature of the conviction, or the matter of the conviction.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now do you know Gus Hall?

A. Yes.

Q. Who is Gus Hall?

A. He is a leading member of the Communist Party
of the USA.

Q. And of course, you having been a member yourself
[fol. 2102] since 1935 and having testified here as an expert
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on the activities of the Communist Party you are familiar
with the activities of Gus Hall, aren’t you?

A. I am familiar with him to a degree.

Q. That is right. Did he ever advocate force and violence
or the overthrow of this country by force and violence?

A. Most certainly not, to the best of my knowledge.

Q. Of course you know he was charged with overthrow-
ing the Government by force and violence?

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to.
The Court: The objection is overruled. Exception noted.

A. I know he was not charged as you have just said.
That is wrong.
Q. What was he charged with?

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to and I don’t think it is
a matter for the record.

The Court: The objection is overruled and an excep-
tion noted.

Mr. Nelson: Do you mean he has to tell charges in con-
nection with somebody else?

The Court: He says he knows of no one advocating force
[fol. 2103] or using force when asked about this particular
man, Gus Hall, and he says he knows his activities to a
limited degree but this man hasn’t used force.

Mr. Nelson: Musmanno charged me with using force and
it is a damnable lie.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. What was he charged with?

A. Mr. Gus Hall was charged not with advocating the
overthrow of the Government of the United States by force
and violence. He was charged with conspiracy to advocate
and teach this.

Q. That is right, which is the same thing.

A. No, sir, I beg your pardon.

Q. But you know he was convicted ?

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to.

The Court: The objection is overruled. Exception noted.
A. Mr. Hall was convicted of this charge; yes.
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Q. And he was one of the national leaders of your
Party, is that right?

A. Yes.
[fol. 2104] Mr. Nelson: That is objected to.

The Court: The objection is overruled.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Do you know if after his conviction and sentence he
ran away to Mexico?

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to.

The Court: The objection is sustained as to that.

Mr. Nelson: I move it be stricken, your Honor.

The Court: No further questioning. The only reason I
am permitting the question concerning other individuals
is because of the witness’s statement he says no one else
advocated the use of force and violence in connection with
the matters discussed and he is subject to cross examina-
tion of any individual within his knowledge and Gus Hall
is apparently one of them but what happened afterwards is
beyond the realm of cross examination.

{fol. 2105] Mr. Cercone:

Do you know Eugene Dennis ?
. Yes, I know Mr. Dennis.
Who is he?
. Another leader of the Communist Party.
What office does he hold?
. (eneral secretary of the Party.
How long was he general secretary of the Party?
. I don’t know the answer to that.
. But you are familiar with the activities of Eugene
Dennis, aren’t you?
A. To a degree.
Q. Do you know he was charged with conspiracy to ad-
vocate an overthrow of the Government by force and vio-
lence?

OPOFOFOFO

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to for the same reason.
The Court: The objection is overruled.

A. Certainly I know he was.



1078

Q. And you know he was convicted?

Mr. Nelson: You know he was framed. You know it.

The Court: That is objected to and the word ‘‘framed’’
also is objected to.
[fol. 2106] Mr. Nelson: And there were other members
of the Supreme Court says it and you know it.

Mr. Cercone:
Q. Do you know Benjamin Davis, Jr.?
Mr. Nelson: Yes, and he was framed, too.
The Court: The objection is overruled.
A. Thave had the honor.

Mr. Cercone :

Q. What was Benjamin Davis, Jr.?
A. Do you want me to answer the question? I didn’t,
si

-

Q. Do you know him?

A. T had the honor to know Mr. Davis.

Q. Do you know that he was charged with conspiracy for
the overthrow of the Government of the United States
by force and violence?

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to.
The Court: The objection is overruled. Exception noted.

A. No, sir. You have a misstatement there again.

[fol. 2107] Mr. Cercone:

Q. What was he charged with?

A. Mr. Benjamin Davis, Jr., former city councilman of
New York City was charged with conspiring to advocate
and teach the overthrow of the Government of the United
States by force and violence.

I left the word teach out.

. You left several words out.

You completed it now?

. I certainly did.

And you know he was convicted of that charge?
Of that charge, yes, he was convieted.

PO PO PO
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Q. Now you know Irving Potash?

A. Slightly.

A. Slightly?

A. That is what I said, slightly.

Q. How do you know him—what was he in the Com-
munist Party?

A. He is another national leader of the Party.

Q. That is right. And of course you know of his ac-
tivities in the Communist Party?

A. As a matter of fact, basically I know only of his
heroic activity in the Trade Union movement.

Q. What else?

A. I said I know as a matter of fact, I know best his
heroic activities in the Trade movement drive.

Q. That is one?

A. That is all I know. I have my opinion.

[fol. 2108] Q. Was he convicted of that crime?

Yes, Mr. Potash was convicted.

Do you know a man by the name of Jacob Scartel ?
Scartel ¢

You know him better than I do, sir.

This is your life, sir.

How long have you known him?

. I couldn’t place how long. It is a few years I would
say that I have known him personally and seen him.

Q. Do you know he was charged with conspiring and
advocating and teaching the overthrow of the Govern-
ment by force and violence?

. Yes, he was so charged.

And do you know he was convicted?

. He was.

Do you know Henry Winston?

. I have that honor, too.

What position did he hold in the Communist Party?
. The precise position I don’t recall.

Was he organizational secretary?

. It is very possible he was. He was the national
leader of the Party.

Q. Was he charged with conspiring and teaching for the
overthrow of the Government by force and violence?

A. Yes, sir,

PO PO FOR

PO PO PO POP
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Q. And do you know he was convieted

A. That is right.
[fol. 2109] Q. Do you know Robert Thompson?

A. Yes.

Q. Where was he in the Communist Party of the United
States?

A. He was another leader of the Party.

Q. Do you know what position he held in the Party?

A. 1 think he was the chairman of the New York State
Party but 1 am, not positively sure.

Q. Do you know he was charged with conspiracy to ad-
vocate and teach the overthrow of the Government of the
United States by force and violence?

. Yes, he was charged.

And do you know he was convicted?

. That is right.

Do you know John Williamson ?

. Yes, I know Mr. Williamson.

What position did he hold in the Party?

. Also a leading position nationally in my Party

. And do you know he was charged with conspiring to
advocate and teach the overthrow of the Government of
the United States by force and violence?

A. Yes.

Q. And you know he was convicted?

A. That 1s right.

Q. Do you know Carl Winter?

A. Yes.

[fol. 2110] Q. Do you know what his real name is?

A. No.

Q. Do you know his real name is Philip Weisberg?

A. 1 have already answered your question, sir. You
asked me if I knew his name and I said no.

Q. What position did he hold in the Communist Party?

A. I don’t know the exaect position but he was a leader
of the Party.

Q. And do you know he was charged with conspiring and
advocating and teaching the overthrow of the Govern-
ment of the United States by foree and violence?

A. I know that.

Q. And do you know he was convicted?

OPOPOPrO >
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A. That is correct.

Mr. Nelson: This is all ebjected to.

The Court: Note an objection and overrule the objection
and an exception for each instance.

Mr. Nelson: I think this is going far afield and being
done over my objection. It is being done because the pros-
ecution is being favored by these objections.

The Court: You have an exception.

[fol. 21117 Mr. Cercone:

Q. You said and of course it is only your opinion that
the Communist Party did not advocate the overthrow of
the Government of the United States by force and violence.
Did you state that?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know that the Congress of the United States
has found officially that the Communist Party of the
United States is an International conspiracy to do so?

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to, your Honor. With all
kinds of standards being made before the Un-American
Committee and that is the kind of stuff he is bringing in
here.

The Court: The objection is sustained.

Mr. Nelson: I thought you were going to quote from the
Constitution.

The Court: We are not trying any other case. The only
reason he is being permitted to answer questions because
of the statement he knows of no one else and that is the
limited things within his knowledge and what else there
is we are not concerned with here. We will recess at
this time until Monday morning at 9:30 o’clock.

[fol. 2112] Menday, January 21, 1952,
Morning Session

Mr. Nelson: May we approach the beneh, your Honor?
The Court: Come forward, gentlemen.

(At side bar.)
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Mr. Nelson: Your Honor, in the Saturday, January 20th
issue of The Pittsburgh Press, the story, ‘‘I Led Three
Lives’’ by Herbert Philbrick appears very prominently
on the second section with a picture Judge Medina and the
picture of the eleven Communists that were convieted in
New York and this display of this material at this time
is obviously planned by the forces behind this prosecution
and under the circumstances a fair trail is impossible
since every juror has been fed this stuff for months now
and which Mr. Cercone was permitted to raise the question
[fol. 2113] in the court room and it was not permitted to be
raised in the last trial. It appears to me that a fair
trial is absolutely impossible and I move for the withdrawal
of a juror and make a motion for a mistrial.

The Court: The motion for a mistrial and withdrawal
of a juror is overruled and exception noted.

Mr. Nelson: Your Honor, I have an affidavit dealing
with matters of this type but I haven’t had a chance to get
it notarized this morning.

The Court: You mean concerning publications?

Mr. Nelson: Clippings. That is one of the last ones
made that I picked up last night.

The Court: What I think you should do or rather a good
plan for you to do would be to incorporate those in one
written motion, if you want, and attach these clippings
if you have them. We have ruled on them separately but if
you want to put them into the record
[fol. 21141 Mr. Nelson: They come too fast every day.

The Court: You do it in that fashion so that they will all
be a matter of record.

(End of side bar.)
Dr. Herbert Aptheker, resumed the stand.

Cross-examination (continued):

The Court: Proceed with the ecross-examination, Mr.
Cercone.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, you said in your direct examination that you
did not know of a Communist who had advocated violence?
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Mr. Nelson: Objection.
The Court: Objection overruled.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. And in fact if one would advocate violence he would
be expelled from the Party. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir.
[fol. 2115] Q. And last Friday you admitted knowing 11
Communists who had been found guilty of advocating vio-
lence

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to as not being a fact.
The Court: Guilty of conspiracy.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Found guilty of conspiracy of advocating and teach-
ing the overthrow of the Government by force and violence.
Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. They have not been expelled from the Party?

A. No.

Q. They have not, is that right?

A. That is right.

Q. And the theory and the program of the Communist
Party, according to what you have said here on the witness
stand, is that the Communist Party intends to achieve its
objective by peaceful methods, and in support of that theory
you said that if anyone should advocate violence he would
be expelled from the Party and yet the 11 top Communists
were found guilty of conspiring of advocating and teach-
ing the overthrow of the Government of the United States
by force and violence and they have not been expelled yet;
is that right?

[fol. 2116] A. That is correct.

Q. Now, when you said you did not know of a single
Communist who advocated violence, it develops, as a mat-
ter of fact, that you did know all the time that there were
Communists who not only advocated violence but were
found guilty by a jury of conspiring to teach and advocate
the overthrow of our Government by force and violence.
Is that right?
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A. No.
Q. You say you don’t know?

Mr. Nelson: Will you elaborate on your answer?
Mr. Cercone: He said, ‘“‘No.”’

A. That’s right.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. So you don’t believe in a verdict of a jury, is that
right?

A. Where you have the question which you put to me,
which is a long one, repeat it.

Q. You answered it, ‘‘No’’. Didn’t you understand it?
All right, I’ll read it. When you said that you did not
know of a single Communist who advocated violence, it
develops, as a matter of fact, that you knew all the time
that there were Communists who not only advocated
[fol. 2117] violence but were found guilty by a jury of
conspiring to teach and advocate the overthrow of our Gov-
ernment by force and violence, and you know of that.

Mr. Nelson: They were not found guilty of advocating
force and violence and you know that.

The Court: We have been over that. They were found
guilty of conspiring to teach and advocate the overthrow
of our Government.

Mr. Cercone: That’s right.

Mr. Nelson: Then why twist it around?

Mr. Cercone:

Q. They were found guilty of conspiring to teach and
advocate the overthrow of the Government by force and
violence and you knew that, didn’t you?

Mr. Nelson: Under the war hysteria that has been
around

The Court: Don’t interrupt, Mr. Nelson. The witness re-
quested it and the question was repeated and he answered
[fol. 2118] it so if the District Attorney isn’t repeating it
as asked originally, we will have the reporter do so.
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The Court:

Q. Do you understand it?
A. Sir, he is not putting the question properly and until
he does so it’s very difficult for me to answer his question.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. I think it’s very clear.

A. It’s clear but improper.

Q. I’ll let the Judge decide that.

A. I’m unable to answer it because it is improper.

The Court: Well, possibly I can ask the question then in a
more simple form.

The Court:

Q. You do know of the trial and convictions of the men
mentioned on Friday for the charges which we have been
over and which we shall not repeat?

A. Well, sir, I requested that it be repeated because it’s
pertinent to the question.

[fol. 2119] The Court: Well, we will have it repeated as
asked originally and to which you gave a negative answer.

(Question and answer read.)

Mr. Cercone:

Q. That is your answer?

A. Now, it’s the middle section of your question which
is improperly worded.

Q. I asked the question and I want the question answered.

The Court: If you want to explain why you can’t answer,
Doctor, explain what is improper about it and which pre-
vents you from answering it.

A. The thing that is improper, in thé middle of the ques-
tion was inserted that I knew they were guilty of advocacy
of violence. This is false. At the end of the question you
assert that I knew they were guilty—found guilty by a jury
of conspiring to teach and advocate the overthrow of the
Government of the United States. These two things are
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quite distinet and since you mixed the two, it’s quite difficult
to explain.

[fol. 2120] Mr. Cercone:

Q. You did know the jury found the top men of the Party
guilty of conspiring to teach and advocate the overthrow
of the Government of the United States by forece and
violence? You did know that?

A. Yes, I know.

Q. Yet these men were not expelled from the Party; that’s
what I'm trying to get at. Is that right?

A. That’s correct.

Q. So that this Constitution of the Communist Party of
America is nothing but a hoax; a gigantic fraud and con-
spiratorial fraud on the people of America?

A. Not at all.

Q. Is that right?

A. No, it’s wrong and I can explain if you will allow me.

Q. I’m explaining

A. No, you are not supposed to explain. I'm supposed
to explain, that’s why I’m on the stand.

The Court: You may explain on redirect examination at
the insistence of the defendant.
A. But he is not right when he says he will explain it.

The Court: He has a right to question but he will not
explain it.

[fol. 21211 Mr. Cercone:

Q. Yet the top 11 men are still the top 11 men of your
Party; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you have stated that you are a Marxist—and you
have said that, ‘If you are not a Marxist, then you are noth-
ing’’. Is that right?

A. Intellectually that is correct.

Q. What do you mean by intellectually?

A. T mean that T am a father, I am a husband, I am a
teacher.

Q. You are a Marxist, is that right?

A. Intellectually that is correct.
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Q. Now, Lenin in ‘‘State and Revolution’’ says this about
a Marxist: ‘A Marxist is one who extends the acceptance
of class struggle to the acceptance of the dictatorship of the
proletariat.”” Is that right?

A. Yes, he says that.

Q. So you believe in dictatorship, don’t you?

A. No.

Q. You don’t believe in dictatorship?

A. No.

Q. You repudiate the man you say you owe your very
life to?

A. No. By the way, I didn’t say ‘I owe my very life to”’.

Q. You said if you are not a Marxist you are nothing.

A. That is right. '

[fol. 2122] Q. Marxist, according to Lienin, whom you also
believe, says, ‘‘ A Marxist is one who extends the acceptance
of class struggle to the acceptance of the dictatorship of the
proletariat.”” Is that right?

A. That is right.

Q. What is a dictator?

A. A dictator?

Q. Yes.

A. A dictator is a man who is in complete power in his
state.

Q. That is right, absolute power. Now, let me explain to
you or read to you, as a Marxist, you accepted the dictator-
ship of the proletariat. What is the dictatorship of the
proletariat? This is what Lenin, one of your teachers, said
about it. “‘To put it briefly, the dictatorship of the pro-
letariat is domination of the proletariat over the bourgeoisie
untrampled by law and based on violence and enjoying the
sympathy and support of the toiling and exploited masses.”’
Did Lenin say that?

A. Yes.

Q. In the ¢‘Dictatorship of the Proletariat’’?

A. Yes.

Q. And you teach that book, don’t you?

A. That is one of the basic classics of mine

The Court: Let the witness please repeat or confirm or
[fol. 21237 inject another question.
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, will you answer that question?

A. T said that is one of the classics of Marxist

Q. ‘“The State and Revolution’’ is one of the very founda-
tions of your Marxist-Leninist theory?

A. Yes, that is right.

Q. And the Communist ‘‘Manifesto’’, is that right?

A. Yes, and the ‘“Manifesto” is a classic of Marxism.

Q. Do you repudiate this definition by Lenin?

A. No.

Q. All right. As a Marxist you believe in Leninism, don’t
you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that ‘“Leninism is Marxism of the era of imperial-
ism and of the proletarian revolution. To be more exact,
Leninism is the theory and the tactics of the proletarian
revolution in general ; the theory and tactics of the dictator-
ship of the proletariat in particular.”’

From what are you reading?

‘‘Foundations of Leninism.”’

That is pretty accurate.

You teach that book in your school, don’t you?
Personally at the moment, no, I don’t.

But you taught that in the Jefferson School?

It’s used; a Marxist classic.

[fol. 21241 Q. Now, you said in direct examination that
you did not know of any Communists in Allegheny County
who ever advocated violence?

A. There is no Communist anywhere who advocate vio-
lence.

Q. That’s what you say.

A. 1 say it under oath.

Q. Now, do you know Antoinette Nuss?

POPOPO >

Mr. Nelson: Objection, your Honor.
The Court: Objection overruled.

The Court:

Q. The question is whether you know. Do you under-
stand the question? Do you know Antoinette Nuss?
A. No, sir.
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. Then you don’t know all the Communists in Western
Pennsylvania, do you?

A. Certainly not.

Q. So you made a general statement here when asked by
the defendant if you knew of any Communists in Western
Pennsylvania who advocated violence?

A. T certainly did.

Q. Now, you teach at this Jefferson School of Social
Science?

[fol. 21251 A. Do I teach theret

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you know, of course, that that school has been
declared an adjunct of the Communist Party by Congress.
You know that?

Mr. Nelson: Objection.

The Court: Objection sustained. What Congress has
done or any committee of Congress we are not trying this
case on their findings. We are trying what we find here
and not trying it on a trial in New York or the findings of
any other body but we are trying it on what this jury is
going to find.

Mr. Cercone: May we have a side bar?

The Court: Come forward, gentlemen.

(At side bar.)

Mr. Cercone: Now, your Honor, if this man, if nothing,
he has been qualified as an expert in Communism in every
phase.

[fol.2126] The Court: We’ll grant that.

Mr. Cercone: He has taken the stand as being acquainted
with every phase of the Communist Party, has qualified
himself as an expert and T have a right to cross-examine
an expert on the Communist Party like any other expert;
that is simple as A, B, C. On that, T mean, after all

The Court: You can ask him whether he is an expert but
I suppose you will disagree with him.

Mr. Cercone: He knows members of the Communist

69—10
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Party who have been in the Party as long as he has. He
told the jury here for two days what he knows.

Mr. Nelson: Well, are you going into those questions
of theory? What do you want to do?

Mr. Cercone: In relation to this business with Congress,
I have a little memorandum:

[fol. 2127] ¢‘The admissibility in evidence of a report
of a Congressional Hearing:

‘1. The admissibility of evidence in the Federal Court
is governed generally by Rule 43 (a) of the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure which is as follows:”’

The Court: The Federal Rules of civil procedure, they
are not governing on us here, they are rules for the Federal
Courts. We have our own rules of civil procedure, criminal
procedure, and we are not bound by the rules of procedure
of the Federal Court.

Mr. Cercone: There are many statutes providing for
the admissibility in evidence of various types of returns in
reports (see Sections 1662 to 1672 of Wigmore). The only
statutory reference to Congressional Committees which I
have found is in June 25, 1948, Chapter 646, 62 Stat. 977, 28,
U. S. C. A. 2507 as follows: ‘“The Court of Claims may call
upon any department or agency of the United States for any
information or papers it deems necessary and may use all
[fol. 2128] recorded and printed reports made by the Com-
mittee of the Senate or House of Representatives.”” It
proposed a uniform act for the use of official reports as evi-
dence of the National Conference of Commissioners of uni-
form state laws has not been adopted in Pennsylvania.

It is my conclusion that none of the matter contained in
Vol. 5—that’s the conclusion of the hearing.

We submit that it may be confronted

The Court: Listen. All you would have to do would be
to bring down the records of the convictions in New York and
submit it in evidence here and the Communist Party would
be established as a seditious organization and his participa-
tion in it would be the only issue here and I refuse to accept
that and if T refuse to accept that as evidence here, I refuse
to accept any findings of any bureau of the United States
Government or any Committee of the United States Con-

gress.
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Mr. Cercone: We have a right to show statements of Com-
munists before any Committee——

[fol. 2129] The Court: That only applies when he makes
claim as an expert on the Communist Party.

Mr. Cercone: When a doctor takes the stand

The Court: You have to ask him first if he is acquainted
with those statements without reading them. You are not
going to read into evidence those statements. You can ask
him if he knows of any state-s made before

Mr. Cercone: He could say no. Cross-examination
doesn’t end by mere negation of the witness. This is cross-
examination.

The Court: If he says, no, you can’t interrogate him on
something which you didn’t bring out in chief and which he
doesn’t know about.

Mr. Cercone: My understanding is, your Honor,—take
in a case where a doctor testifies. Naturally he doesn’t bring
[fol. 213071 out in chief what another doctor, who contra-
dicts his testimony, says about it, yet he is confronted with
that because he holds himself out as an expert.

The Court: This man is not held out as an expert. He is
just held out, as Judge Musmanno, as one who is qualified to
discuss the subject. Now, I will grant you that in medical
science, where there are certain fundamental textbooks on
a subject, you can ask this witness or that doctor whether
or not he is familiar with the theory of Doctor so and so as
expounded in a thesis of some sort and if the answer is, yes,
and then you can ask him, well, Doctor so and so disagrees
with you in that respect and he may explain his position
but if he says, ‘“No, I’'m not acquainted with Doector so and
so’s theory on it”’

Mr. Cercone: He can’t be confronted with it?

The Court: You can ask him in general about his dis-
agreements but you can’t get into the theory and ideas
[fol. 2131] of someone else about which this man or anv
other qualified so-called expert is unfamiliar with. If yon
can show me any clause to the contrary, I will be glad to
examine it and change my ruling but that is my impression
here without

Mr. Cercone: Well, part of our case

The Court: What you want to do is confront this man with
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something said elsewhere. If you want to bring that person
here to refute in rebuttal

Mr. Cercone: But I still think I have a chance to ask on
cross-examination the opinions of the Communist members,
leading Communist members, what they have——

The Court: If he is familiar with them—Ask him if he
knows the opinions of so and so which has been expressed
here or in books if you have a book here submit it to him.
[fol. 2132] Mr. Cercone: We have books.

The Court: Ask him if he is familiar with the statement
of Mr. Foster or anybody else that you want, as expressed
in the books, and ask him whether it is contrary to what
he testified as to the theory of the Communist Party but
the only thing I am preventing you from doing is getting
in statements from people made on the outside or to other
committees or any conclusions drawn by those other
witnesses.

Mr. Cercone: Only as an expert on the Party, that is all.

The Court: Well, certainly, if he is an expert of the
Party, if he is familiar with them, the statements made by
them, but if he is not familiar with them—you ask them but
you will have to produce proof that they made the state-
ments.

Mr. Cercone: We have the proof.

The Court: You are not going to prove it by something
[fol. 2133] you bring in here unauthenticated. You bring
in the reporter from the testimony that was taken before
some committee in Washington as we have to bring in a
reporter to establish a fact that someone may have said
something or bring in the person that said it. That is the
only way you have of getting around it but you are not go-
ing to just bring in a record of a hearing unauthenticated
by someone; you have got to prove that someone said that.

Mr. Cercone: I agree with your Honor, but this man here
is talking for the the entire Communist Party. He is just
going into——

The Court: He is not talking for the entire Communist
Party, he is talking for the defendant. He is not even an
officer of the Communist Party.

Mr. Nelson: I didn’t know the Communist Party was on
trial.
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The Court: Well, it is on trial to this extent. If you
[fol. 2134] are a member of a seditious organization, and
that is one of the counts of the indictment, but membership
alone, as pointed out to the jury, is not sufficient.

What you are trying to do is establish the principles of
the Party on cross-examination by this witness and if he
denies it, knowledge of the things that you are trying to
bring out you will have to prove it some other way.

Mr. Cercone: Well, he stated on the stand that the Com-
munist Party does not stand for violence.

Mr. Nelson: That’s right, he told the truth.

Mr. Cercone: Wait awhile.

The Court: And I let you bring out that certain members
were convicted but I am not going to let you bring out that
certain members

Mr. Nelson: Advocating force and violence.

[fol. 2135] There was no overt act committed, as cited
against them.

The Court: The overt act was organizing an organiza-
tion and establishing an organization that would have those
purposes.

I am not going to let you bring in things and confront
this man with things he doesn’t know about or any conclu-
sions or decisions drawn by other bodies of the courts. As
I said, if T were convinced that the decisions in New York,
the verdicts against the eleven was judicative of this mat-
ter and hadn’t any right to pry into it further, then just
offer the record and the only issue would be whether the
defendant here was actively supporting the policies of the
Party. So, I am not going to permit you to do that because
I am not convinced the law is thus, so you have your wit-
nesses—oh, you had White, Patterson, Cvetic—they all
testified what the policies were. The policies were one
thing, the action something else. You can interrogate this
man on that basis all you want, to the extent of his knowl-
edge, but I am not going to let you go beyond that.

[fol. 21361 (End of side bar.)

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, at this Jefferson School of Social Science, this
school teaches Marxism, is that right?
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A. Yes.

Q. And, of course, Marxism, fundamentally, is Commun-
ism in the broad sense of the word?

A. No.

Q. You say it isn’t?

A. That’s what I said.

Q. Isn’t the Communist state in Russia, let’s say, based
on Marxism-Leninism?

A. Your first characterization of the Communist state in
Russia is inaccurate.

Q. As a Marxist you also teach Communism; you admit
being a Communist?

A. T affirm I am a member of the Communist Party.

Q. And in this school, Jefferson School of Social Science,
you don’t have any course in that school on Thomas
Jefferson? 1 don’t mean the name, you don’t have a course
called ‘‘Thomas Jefferson’’ or something like that?

A. Yes, we have something like that.
[fol. 2137] Q. You don’t have any course on the life of
Thomas Jefferson, that is, the complete study?

A. Just confined to Mr, Jefferson, you mean?

Q. Yes.

A. No.

Q. But you do have a great deal of material on Lenin and
Stalin and Marx and so forth; is that right?

A. And Jefferson.

Q. And Jefferson?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. All right. You show me now just where you have
anything on Jefferson.

A. T don’t have to do that, I’1l tell you.

Q. I want you to find it in there.

A. What is the year of this, do you know, 19501

The Court:

Q. Is that what has been identified? Is that an exhibit?
A. No, sir. Just what he handed me, a pamphlet.

The Court: Let’s mark this as an exhibit so we will
know what you are talking about.

A. Do you want this, Mr. Cercone?
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[fol. 2138] Mr. Cercone:

Q. I show you Commonwealth’s Exhibit No. 171 and I
want you to show me where you have anything——

The Court: Identify it first.

Q. It’s a pamphlet enumerating the courses taught in
the Jefferson School of Social Science.

The Court:

Q. Do you affirm that, Doctor?
A. Yes, sir, for the winter of 1950.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. I ask you to show me where you have a course spe-
cifically and particularly on Thomas Jefferson.

A. T already replied there is no such course.

Q. That’s right.

A. T also replied that there was a great deal on Thomas
Jefferson.

Q. But with a Marxist application and aspect, is that
right?

A. Well, it’s taught—well, it’s taught by me. For ex-
ample, I teach it from a philosophical point of view; as a
Marxist.

Q. Isn’t it a fact that your school glorifies the Com-
munist leaders, such as Stalin, the Dictator of Russia,
Mao-Tse-Tung, the Dictator of China and head of the
Communist forces fighting the United States forces in
[fol. 2139] Korea?

Mr. Nelson: Objection.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. —and William Z. Foster, the American Communist
leader?

A. There are so many inaccuracies in the question it’s
impossible to answer it.

Q. I said, you glorified them?

A. No.

Mr. Nelson: Let him explain.
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, I show you Commonwealth’s Exhibit No. 62,
I think it is, your Honor, one of the Daily Workers in the
large bundle, and ask you to look at that. Is this the
““Daily Worker’’?

A. Yes.

Q. And that is an official organ of the Communist Party
of America?

A. No.

Q. You say it isn’t?

A. No.

Q. What is the Daily Worker?

A. The Daily Worker is a newspaper published daily
by the Freedom of the Press, Inc.

[fol. 2140] Q. And you say the Daily Worker is not the
official organ of the Communist Party of America?

A. That’s right. You mean the Communist Party of the
United States.

Q. The Communist Party of the United States. Now, I
show you Page 5 of the Daily Worker which shows a picture
of Joe Stalin, Mao-Tse-Tung and William Z. Foster at the
head of which it says: ‘“Armed with theory, we are in-
vincible.”” Beneath the picture of William Z. Foster it says:
¢‘—the youth in the labor and Communist movement should
most resolutely find the time for lots of solid reading.”’

Mao-Tse-Tung: ‘“We study Marxism-Leninism not be-
cause of its good looks, nor because there is any magiec in it,
as if it were a kind of charm to cast out devils—it has
neither good looks nor magic—it is only very useful.”’

And Stalin says: ‘‘—the higher the political level and
Marxist-Leninist knowledge of the workers, the better and
more fruiful will be the work itself.”’

Now, you say that is not glorifying Joseph Stalin?

A. I don’t think there is any glorification, do you?

Q. Absolutely.

A. Why?

Q. Why, you’re showing his picture in the Daily Worker.

The Court: Let’s not include this argument between
[fol. 2141] counsel and the witness. The doctor’s opinion is
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that it does not glorify but the most important thing is what
you haven’t established, Mr. Cercone, is what the witness
has to do with the Daily Worker. He said it is not an
official organ of the Communist Party.

Mr. Cercone: We will contradict that in rebuttal, your
Honor. That is just a question I asked him.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, so that this school, in view of the fact that it
teaches Marxism and does not teach Jeffersonism, it could
be called the Marxism School instead of the Jeffersonian
School?

A. Who's calling it the ‘‘Jeffersonian School’’?

Q. The Jefferson School for Social Science.

A. That is the name of the school.

Q. It could be just as well called the Marxist School for
Social Science?

A. T don’t understand your question. Are you offering to
re-name the school?

Q. Could it be called that just as well?

A. That’s ridiculous.

[fol. 2142] Mr. Nelson: I object, your Honor.
The Court: We will sustain the objection to the question.

By Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, you say that the Communist Party of the United
States is not connected with the Communist Party in Russia,
is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. Is the Communist Party of the Soviet Union a section

of the Communist International?
A. No.

Mr. Nelson: Objection.

The Court: Objection overruled. He has been stating
facts as one qualified in the field of Communist activity and

I think he can answer that. He answered negatively on
that.

Mr. Nelson: I would like to be heard on that, your Honor.
It’s a well-known fact that the Communist International
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was dissolved as far back as 41 and if there were any con-
[fol. 2143] nection at any time——

The Court: He said, no, that it wasn’t. 1 don’t know that
it needs any further argument.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, in 1941 the Communist Party of the United
States belonged to the Communist International, didn’t it¢

A. I believe it did.

Q. And did the Communist Party of the Soviet Union
belong to the Communist International?

A. At that time?

Q. At that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did the Communist Party of China belong to the
Communist International?

A. I believe it did at that time.

Q. And did the Communist Party of other nations belong
to the Communist International?

A. Yes.

Q. And now you say that the Communist Party of the
United States is not a part of the Communist International?

A. That is right.

Q. Do you know Benjamin Gitlow?

A. No.
ffol. 2144] Q. You don’t know Benjamin Gitlow?

A. No.

Q. Did you know that he is the General Secretary of the
Communist Party of the United States?

Mr. Nelson: The man answered the question——

The Court: Well, I suppose that is a personal signifi-
cance. Was he personally acquainted with him?

Mr. Nelson: He is the same type as Crouch, who became
a renegade and sold out for money and you want to bring
him here.

The Court: Let the witness explain.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Do you know Benjamin Gitlow, the General Secretary
of the Communist Party of the United States?



1099

A. I’m not even certain of that.

Q. Now, Mr. Witness, you said a Marxist and Marxism is
sort of an international movement, is that right?

A. No.

Q. You say Marxism is not an international movement?

A. No.
[fol. 2145] Q. You say that the Communist Pary in Russia
does not base their Communistic state on Marxism?

A. They do.

Q. Does the Communist Party in China base its program
on Marxism?
A. Yes.
Q. Does the Communist Party of Albania base its pro-
gram on Marxism?
Yes.
The same in Poland?
. Yes.
The same in Czecho-Slovakia?
. Yes.

And the same in Bulgaria?

. Yes.

. And you say that that isn’t an international move-
ment ?

A. That’s right. Marxism is not a movement.

Q. But it’s adopted by the International, the countries
throughout the world, is that right?

A. Marxism is.

Q. Now, you know that William Z. Foster, the National
Chairman of your Party says: ‘““We Marxians are inter-
nationalists.”” Do you know that?

A. Do you have the direct quote? I would rather have
what Foster says from him.

Q. All right. I’'m asking you that and I could show——

A. T would rather see it, Mr. Cercone, if you don’t mind.
{fol. 2146] Q. All right, I will show it to you.

A. T just don’t know the exact quote so I can’t answer
you intelligently.

Q. I show you Commonwealth’s Exhibit No. 4—I think
it is or 19—and show you Page 167 and refer to that line

(indicating) and does Mr. Foster say that, ‘““We are
Marxian internationalists’’?

>0 POPOP

o
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A. Yes, sir.
Mr. Nelson: Will you explain that?

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Just a minute. I show you——

A. Do you want the sentence that follows that, Mr.
Cercone?

Q. I want to follow this up and then get to that.

A. T see.

Q. I show you Commonwealth’s Exhibit No. 50, which
was found in the Communist Headquarters, and read to
you: Page 54—

The Court: You mean identified as having been found.
Mr. Cercone: Yes, your Honor.

Q. ‘“‘An internationalist is he, says Comrade Stalin, who
unreservedly, without any hesitation, and unconditionally,
[fol.2147] is ready to defend the U. S. S. R. because the
U. 8. 8. R. constitutes the base of the world revolutionary
movement, and to defend, to advance this revolutionary
movement is impossible without defending the U. S. S. R.
He who thinks in terms of defending the world revolution-
ary movement without the U. S. S. R. and against it, goes
against revolution and inevitably finds his way into the
camp of the enemies of revolution.”

The Court: Are you asking this man’s opinion of that?
Are you putting a question to the witness concerning that?

Mr. Cercone: That is Stalin’s interpretation of an inter-
nationalist.

Mr. Nelson: Well, is that a question?

Mr. Cercone: I am going to ask him a question.

A. By the way, you were not reading from Stalin. I guess
you know that?

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Tknow. But I’'m reading from ‘‘ Communist Leader.’’

A. I’m just making the point because you said ¢“Stalin’’.
[fol. 2148] Q. It states here: ‘‘An internationalist is he,
says Comrade Stalin’’——
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A. But it’s not quoting Stalin.

Q. Well it’s written—who is it written by?

A. You tell me who it’s written by.

Q. Well, it’s such a strange name—Gh. Gheorghiu-Dej.
Who is he?

A. What does it say?

Q. Communist Party Leader of the Party of Yugoslavia.

A. But not Stalin.

Q. He says, ‘“‘An internationalist is he, says Comrade
Stalin’’—you don’t agree with that?

A. Do I agree with that formulation?

Q. Yes.

Mr. Nelson: Give your opinion of what an international-
ist is.

The Court: Does that correctly reflect the views of the
Communist Party of the U. S. A.¢?

The Court:

Q. Does that statement reflect the views of the Com-
munist Party of the U. S. A.?

A. T would say that it is in acecord, more or less, basically,
[fol. 2149] with the position of the Communist Party of the
U. S. A. and that it contains in its parts of the concept of
internationalism, which is part of Marxism-Leninism.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, you say that the Communist Party of the United
States is no longer a part of the Communist International
or part of the Communist Party of Russia?

A. It never was.

Q. Now, I show you Commonwealth’s Exhibit No. 67,
being Kugene Dennis’ ‘‘Ideas They Cannot Jail’’ and of
course Kugene Dennis is the General Secretary of the Party,
is he?

A. That is right.

Q. I show you Page 187 of that exhibit and just direct
your attention to this paragraph (indicating). Read it and
then I am going to read it out loud.

A. You wouldn’t read the paragraph after it too, would
you?
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Q. ‘“‘Fourth, it is incumbent on us to raise to new heights
the struggle for proletarian internationalism, the touch-
stone of which, for Communists and non-Communists, is the
attitude to the Soviet Union, to the land of socialism. We
know, and we must help other workers and progressives to
realize, that the Soviet Union is not just another country.

‘It is the land of socialism, ”

Is that right?
[fol. 2150] A. You didn’t finish it.

Q. Is that right?

A. You mean, did you read that correctly?

Q. I read every word of that paragraph.

A. You put a question to me, ‘‘Is that right?’’ Do you
mean, did you read that correctly?

Q. I said, yes, I did. I read every word of it.

A. Fine, that is splendid.

Mr. Nelson: You stopped at a comma and not a period.

The Court: There is no question about the correctness
of the reading of it but there was no question put to the
witness, Mr. Cercone.

Mr. Cercone: But I asked him if I read it right.

The Court: No, you didn’t. You said, ¢‘‘Is that right?”’
‘What did you mean?

A. After you finished reading a part you said, ‘“‘Is that
right?’”’ I am trying to indicate that I don’t understand
your question.

[fol. 2151] Mr. Cercone:

Q. That is right, the part that I read?
The Court: You mean, did you read it right?

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Do you understand the paragraph?

A. Yes, I understand it.

Q. And you agree to that?

A. I just want to add you didn’t read the entire para-
graph.

Q. You say not the entire paragraph on that page?

A. T am just depending on my memory.
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We will get to the other part.

What is the last page you read?

On this page (indicating).

But that is not a paragraph

. Let me read it again. ‘‘Fourth, it is incumbent on us
to raise to new heights the struggle for proletarian inter-
nationalism, the touchstone of which, for Communists and
non—Communists, is the attitude to the Soviet Union, to
the land of socialism. We know, and we must help other
workers and progressives to realize, that the Soviet Union
1s not just another country.”” Do you agree with that
sentence?

A. Do I agree with that? Yes, I agree with that.

Q. Now, of course, you have another paragraph: ‘It is
[fol. 2152] the land of socialism——"’

A. Pardon me, it is the same paragraph.

Q. On the next page. ‘‘It is the land of socialism, the
land of the workers, of the farmers/ off all the peoples and
nationalities that make up the U.S.S.R. It is the land
where the workers rule and live today free from exploita-
tion, from mass unemployment, free from the insecurities
and the oppression of capitalism. It is the land of freedom
and culture, the land of true democracy, the democracy of
socialism.’’ You say that is a true statement?

A. T believe it is.

Q. What about the seven million people in the slave
camps? You still say they are free?

opore

Mr. Nelson: I object. That’s a lie coming from the pro-
secution.

The Court: Objection sustained.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. You say there are no people in slave camps in Russia?
A. Am I to answer that question?

Mr. Nelson: The Soviet Union is not being tried by the
prosecution. I think the Soviet Union can take care of
[fol. 2153] itself.

The Court: The objection is sustained. You need not
answer it.
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, I show you Commonwealth’s Kxhibit No. 54,
which was found in the headquarters of the Communist
Party of Western Pennsylvania, under the control of Steve
Nelson, and show you Page 27.

The Court: What exhibit is that, Mr. Cercone?

Mr. Cercone: Exhibit No. 54, page 27.

The Court: What do you want to do, ask the witness
whether he agrees with the statements in the various books
and whether they reflect the attitude of the Communist
Party of the United States?

Mr. Cercone: That is right.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. That article was written by Gus Hall—
[fol. 2154] Mr. Nelson: Objection, your Honor. I think
the prosecution is just dragging in things that don’t have
to be raised at this time.

The Court: Objection overruled.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Who is Gus Hall?

A. Gus Hall is a national leader of the Communist
Party of the U.S.A.

Q. Now, listen to what he says: ‘““We must avoid and
do everything in our power to make sure that we will not
be put into a situation where Communists vote for reso-
lutions that condemn the Soviet Union.”” Do you agree
with that?

A. Certainly. Read the title of that article.

Q. Never mind. I’ll read the title.

The Court: What is the exhibit number?

Mr. Cercone:

Q. ““Through United Struggle, Victory of Peace.”” And
that’s what this whole mass of literature is here, found in
the Communist Party of Western Pennsylvania; the glori-
fication of Russia?

A. Certainly not.
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[fol. 2155] Mr. Nelson: I object.

A. What is the characterization you used, that ‘‘mess’’.
Are you ready to burn that?

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Is there anything in this mass of literature that
criticizes in any way the Soviet Union?

A. TIs there anything?

Q. Can you point out anything?

A. How can I possibly answer that question when I have
no idea what you have in this mass?

Q. All right, you know the ‘‘Life of Joseph Stalin’’?

A. I know the volume. If you want to have me sensibly
answer the question, if you will show me everything that
is there and if I have read everything that is there, I will
be happy to answer your questions.

The Court: We will not permit you to indulge or the
District Attorney to indulge in the asking of such a general
catch-all generous question.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. But you are familiar with that book?
[fol. 2156] A. Yes.

Q. And you are familiar with this book, ‘‘Joseph Stalin,
a Political Biography’’?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you have seen and are familiar with Eugene
Dennis’ ‘‘Ideas They Cannot Jail’’?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you are familiar with the little handbill ‘‘Hands
Off Korea and Formosa’’?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are familiar with the book by George Marian
entitled ‘‘The Communist Trial’’?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are familiar, of course, with all the books
that we have indicated to you, ‘‘Foundations of Leninism”’
by Joseph Stalin?

A. Yes.

70—10
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Q. ‘““‘Problems of Leninism’’ by Joseph Stalin?

A. Yes. Just a minute. Just ‘‘Leninism’’ by Joseph
Stalin.

Q. This book says, ‘‘Problems of Leninism”’.

A. I may not know that—oh, yes, I’m familiar with that.

Q. ‘“The Dictatorship of the Proletariat’’ by Lenin?

A. That is actually several authors; yes, I am familiar
with it.

Q. ‘“The Theory of the Proletariat and Revolution’’ by
Lenin. You know that book?

A. Yes.

[fol. 2157] Q. *‘State and Revolution’’ by Lenin, you
know that?

A. Yes.

Q. “‘The Twilight of World Capitalism’’ by William Z.
Foster, the National Chairman of your Party. Do you
know that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. There is an inscription in that book: ‘‘To my Great-
Grandson Joseph Manley Kolbo who will live in a Com-
munist United States’’. You know that book?

A. 1 do.

Q. And you know the ‘“Selected Works of Lenin’’, Vol.
9, don’t you?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know the ‘‘Selected Works of Lenin”’, Vol. 87

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know ‘‘United Front Against Fascism’’ by
George Dimitroff? Who was he?

Dimitroff?

Yes.

He is the Premier of Bulgaria.

What is he in the Communist International?

What he had been?

Yes, before he died.

Before he died.

‘What was he?

. Dimitroff was the man who defied Hitler at the Reich-
stag trial.

Q. And you have read the Daily Worker, haven’t you?
[fol. 21581 A. This is certainly a series of irrelevant

PO POPOFOP
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questions, if I may say so, moving from Dimitroff to the
Daily Worker.
The Court: This will form a question that will be put to

you, about all these volumes, and I don’t consider that
irrelevant.,

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Did you read the Daily Worker?

A. What issue?

Q. Say all the issues from since you have been a party
member?

A. No, I haven’t.

Q. How long have you been reading the Daily Worker?

A. Oh, I'd say about 16 years; something like that.

Q. Well, 16 years, that covers practically the time that
you have be¢n a member of the Communist Party?

A. 1 think it covers more.

Q. And you are familiar with Lenin’s ‘‘Imperialism’’,
the high state of capitalism?

A. Yes.

Q. You are familiar with ‘‘Marxism and Revisionism”’
by Joseph Stalin and V. 1. Lenin, aren’t you?

A. Let me see that. Yes.

Q. And you are familiar with the ‘‘History of the Com-
munist Party of the Soviet Union’’?

A. Yes.
[fol. 2159] Q. That book is taught in the Jefferson School
for Social Science, is it not? Is it not one of the books used
at the Jefferson School?

A. Tt is one of the books used at the Jefferson School.

Q. And is what is taught in this book still applicable to
the program of the Communist Party of the U. S. A.?

A. The way you put that question it cannot be answered.

Q. Do you apply it in any way to the program of the
Communist Party of the United States?

A. Tt is studied here as a very valuable history book.

Q. A valuable history book?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you have a sequel to it, bringing it up to 1949
in this school, do you not? Do you known if the Jefferson
School for Social Science has a sequel of the book, bringing
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it up to date, the ‘‘History of the Communist Party of
the Societ Union’’, from where it leaves off up to 1949%
A. A sequel? Another volume, you mean?
Q. I don’t know whether it’s another volume but there
is a little pamphlet in which you say you have a sequel
bringing this

The Court: Supplemental?
Mr. Cercone: The word is ‘“sequel’’.

A. 1 don’t know of any sequel to that. I don’t know
what you are talking about.
[fol. 2160] Mr. Nelson: Well, the man answered the ques-
tion that he doesn’t know.

The Court: He is going to direct his attention to the list
of studies in the Jefferson School, I presume.

Mr. Nelson: It’s a list of books, it’s not studies.

The Court: A list of books.

A. Is that all part of the other question?

Mr. Cercone:

Q. This is it there (indicating). Does that mean a sequel?
You explain that to me. I just saw it in there.

A. The sequel to this course, that’s what it’s saying.

Q. Of the ‘“‘History of the Communist Party of the So-
viet Union’’?

A. In other words, this book ends in 1939 and the course
does not end in 1939. It doesn’t mean that there was a
book published.

Q. But a sequel to the course?

A. A sequel to the course of ‘‘History of the Communist
Party of the Soviet Union’’?

[fol. 2161] Mr. Nelson: I think he understands your dif-
ferent questions and you got an answer; he told you, no.

Mr. Cercone: Yes, I got an answer. Just wait a minute.
The Court: The objection to the question is overruled.
Mr. Cercone:

Q. Are you teaching ‘‘History of the Communist Party
of the Soviet Union’’ under the actual ‘‘History of the
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Communist Party of the Soviet Union’’ from 1917 to 19491

A. T am not teaching it.

Q. The school does?

A. There is such a course.

Q. Have you read Gus Hall’s Report of July 13, 1950, his
Report to the National Committee Conference?

A. I'd have to see it, sir. I don’t actually remember this
item.

Q. But you did learn from your studies and activities
in the Party that he did make such a report?

A. Well, T have no reason to doubt this item, I mean the
authenticity of this item as I see it, but I can’t claim that
[fol. 2162] I am familiar with it as such.

Q. Now, are you familiar with the magazine ‘‘New
Times’’?

A. Yes, I, am.

Q. How long have you been reading the ‘‘New Times’’?

A. The answer would have to be approximated.

Q. Yes, approximately.
~ A. It’s probably a couple of years or several months,
I’'m not positive.

Q. But certainly sinece 1950%

A. I believe so.

Q. Have you been reading the magazine ‘‘People’s
China’’?

A. Only occasionally. May I see that? Yes, I seen that
once in a while.

Q. And have you ever read from it?

A. Occasionally I have.

Q. Are you familiar with the book ‘‘The Soviet Spirit”’
by Harry F. Ward?

A. You mean

Q. Have you read that book?

A. Let me see that—if it’s the one I have in mind. I must
say that I never actually read it but I am familiar with the
works of Dr. Ward, a distinguished theologian.

Q. Are you familiar with that magazine ‘‘The Soviet
Spirit’’? Have you ever seen this?

[fol. 2163] A. I believe I have seen some issues. I don’t
know whether I seen this one.

Q. But you are familiar with that magazine, aren’t you?
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A. I know of its existence—I mean, I haven’t read it in
the regular way.

Q. And have you read the magazine ‘‘Political Affairs’’?

A. 1 can’t hear you.

Q. Have you read the magazine ‘‘Political Affairs’’?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are familiar with that magazine?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you read the pamphlet or booklet called ‘‘ Work-
ing Class Unity for Peace’’—this one?

A. I have read parts of it. I haven’t studied that with
great care.

Q. Have you read this little book or pamphlet called
““Cold War in the Classroom’’?

A. Yes.

Q. And, of course, you are familiar with ‘‘Masses and
Mainstreams’’ since you are what? Some publisher or
co-editor?

A. I am associate editor. Yes, I am familiar with that
magazine.

Q. And are you familiar with the mimeographed ma-

terial put out by the Communist Party of the United
States from time to time? That is, they put out this ma-
terial such as ‘‘Outline Guide for Speakers’’——
[fol. 2164] Mr. Nelson: Well, your Honor, I believe that
you can’t do justice to this question by taking a ton of
paper and taking it up and saying, ‘‘You are familiar with
this.”” Each item ought to be put in separately and if the
witness knows, he will answer. I believe that’s the proper
way; you can’t do this stuff wholesale.

Mr. Cercone:
Q. Are you familiar with this?
Mr. Nelson: 1 don’t know what it is, neither does the
Court Reporter know, nor the Judge know.
Mr. Cercone:

Q. ‘‘Outline Guide for Speakers for Material on the
Korean Situation”’.

A. T don’t believe I am actually familiar with that, no.
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Q. Are you familiar with this mimeographed material
““Heroic Struggles of the People of South Korea for
Unity and Independence of Their Country’’?

A. I’'m afraid I’'m not.

Q. And all the books which you have identified as being
familiar with or having read, can you point out anywhere
where they have criticized the Soviet Union?

[fol. 2165] A. Where they have criticized the Soviet
Union?

Q. Yes.

A. Well, you know that is a tremendous question to an-
swer in terms of dozens of volumes that you have shown me,
most of which or many of which don’t deal with the Soviet
Union; some of which were written long before the Soviet
Union came into being.

The Court: I think the doctor may elaborate why it’s
difficult to answer and if he can answer, do so, if you can
explain why, doctor.

A. Well, I was saying that you showed me—I don’t
know how many books and——

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Yes. Well, we just did that in order to save a little
time. I could have taken each one individually and asked
the same question for each pamphlet or book.

A. Well, I am answering your question. That would
have been a little helpful in knowing precisely what your
question was about, but since you did it this way I will
answer 1t this way.

I didn’t count how many books you showed me and I
don’t memorize the books that you showed me although
those I testified that I was familiar with, I am familiar
with. Some of the books you showed me do not concern
[fol. 2166] themselves with the Soviet Union; some do, in
whole, some do in part; some were written before the So-
viet Union came into being. Some may have self-critical
material dealing with aspects of the Soviet Union by some
of the leaders because this is very common. So I daresay
that in several of these volumes you would find that type of
critical material.
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One of the sole books that I remember that you showed
me which specifically dealt with the Soviet Union was Dr.
Ward’s ““The Soviet Spirit’’. Whether Dr. Ward had
anything critical to say of the Soviet Union or not——

Q. Well, if you read it you would know.

A. First, I think I testified that I hadn’t read it thor-
oughly; secondly, the book is published several years ago
and if you think that I remember exactly the contents of
the 250-page

Q. I just asked you a general question.

The Court: He is answering it.

A. T am answering it as best I can. It’s my impression
that there my be some critical material in Dr. Ward’s book.
Now, if you would like me to look at it and try and read it
over, read it after the recess, I will come back in and make
a report.

The Court: We will take a recess at this time and you
can examine it if you wish.

[fol. 2167] (Recess.)

(After recess.)
Dr. Herbert Aptheker resumed the stand.

Cross-examination. (Continued.)

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Were you able to look at ‘“The Spirit of the Soviet
Union’’?

A. T glanced at it, yes, sir.

Q. Well, my question was whether or not there is any-
thing in this literature here that criticizes the Soviet Union;’
that is, not a constructive criticism, but a criticism which
holds it out to ridicule and contempt?

Mr. Nelson: Objection.
The Court: Objection overruled.
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A. T don’t want to repeat the original answer I gave.
Appending this to your question, the answer to it is no.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, you are bound by the findings of the National
Board of the Communist Party of the United States, aren’t
[fol. 2168] you, as a member of the Party?

A. Bound by the findings?

Mr. Nelson: Objection. I didn’t know the Communist
Party was going to be tried here again.

The Court: Well, the Constitution is involved. I sup-
pose what you have reference to——

Mr. Nelson: Let’s put it specifically.

Mr. Cercone: The National Board of the Communist
Party of the United States.

The Court: What do you find by the ‘“findings’’$

Mr. Cercone:

Q. It sets the program for the Party of the United
States?

A. Not the Board.

Q. Who does?

A. The whole Party does, through the National Con-
ventions.

Q. Then the whole members are bound by their decisions?

A. They remain members if they agree with the pro-
gram, if they disagree, they leave the Party.
[fol. 2169] Q. Now, Mr. William Z. Foster, of course, is
the National Chairman of your Party?

A. That is right.

Q. And you stated here that the Communist Party in-
tends to achieve its objectives by an election, is that right?

A. Once again that question is phrased, you will pardon
me for saying so, in so inadequate a manner it’s impos-
sible to give clarity to the jury in replying to it.

Q. I want you to answer that question. You said the
Communist Party intends to achieve its objective by an
election.

The Court: First of all, did you say that?
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. Did you say that?
A. T doubt that I put it that way.

Mr. Nelson: How did you put it?

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Don’t you mean that the Communist Party of the
United States means to achieve its objective by means of
an election?

A. T mean that the Communist Party of the United
States

Q. Can you answer that question?

[fol. 21701 'The Court: You asked him what he means and
he said, ‘‘I mean——'’ he is explaining what he means.

A. T mean that the Communist Party of U.S.A. hopes to
achieve its immediate program through peaceful persua-
sion, argument, getting the majority of the people

Mr. Cercone:
Q. All right, go ahead.
A. Your continuing smirking over there annoys me.

The Court: There shouldn’t be an imposition on the part
of counsel

A. It’s very annoying to say the least to have a man
smirking:

Mr. Cercone:
Q. I don’t have to look at you, I can look out here.
The Court: Explain to the jury.

A. I said and I will say again that the Communist Party
seeks to achieve its objectives through mass approval of
what it wants through persuasion, through election activity,
[fol. 2171] through mass activity; this is the way it wants
to achieve its program, yes, sir.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. You say, yes?
A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And William Z. Foster is the National Chairman of
your Party, is that right?

A. That is right.

Q. And you agree with what he thinks on that matter?

A. Well, you tell me what it is.

Q. Here is what it says: ‘‘No Communist, no matter how
many votes he secures in a national election””

Mr. Nelson: Just a minute. I want to know what you
are reading from, what is the document?
Mr. Cercone: This is Foster’s statement
Mr. Nelson: What’s it from? What is 1t?
Mr. Cercone: The 1946 hearing before the Committee on
Un-American Activities.
[fol. 2172] Mr. Nelson: Objection, your Honor. That mat-
ter

Mr. Cercone: That has been raised before a commit-
tee

Mr. Nelson: Before a committee where you cannot cross-
examine anyone, where you cannot have proper defense
and, therefore, I don’t know what this is and I don’t want
this man to bring it in here in this manner.

The Court: Show it to the witness and see if he is
familiar with the statement and if he is, you may discuss
it with him, if not, you may not.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Here is the statement he made. You are familiar
with that?

A. T am not familiar with that book at all.

Q. Not with the book, with the statement.

Mr. Nelson: Well, he answered you.

The Court: Well, there might be a difference. He may
have made the statement elsewhere.

[fol. 2173} The Court:

Q. Are you familiar with that statement referred to in
the book?
A. No, I am not familiar with it.
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. You say you are not familiar with this statement in
which Foster says

The Court: We are not going to hear what Foster said.
You are not going to confront this witness with anything
he does not know about.

Mr. Cercone: Your Honor, he says he does know but——-

Mr. Nelson: Are you going to testify for him?

The Court: You will have to prove it. He does say he
is not familiar and you are not going to re-establish that
he is familiar with it.

Mr. Cercone: I have a right, your Honor, to confront
[fol. 2174] him with the statement and have him state
whether or not he is familiar

The Court: Not somebody else’s. You can confront
him with his own statement but not with a statement made
by somebody else with which he is not familiar.

Mr. Cercone: The only statement, and which was made
by the National Chairman of the Party

The Court: All right. He said he is not familiar with it.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, you are not familiar with the statement of the
National Chairman made in 1946%

A. First of all, sir, as you will see, if you will look at
what you showed, he didn’t make that statement in 1946.

Q. This is it.

A. I know, and I never saw that statement until the mo-
ment you showed it to me and I didn’t even have time to
finish it but you know as well as I do it states of that time.

Q. I will show you, but it was brought up in 1946——
[fol. 2175] A. Well, he said that in 1930.

Q. All right, that is understood that it was explained in
1930 and again in 1946 and I want to read the entire state-
ment and see if you are not——

A. I don’t know it, I don’t know that statement.

The Court: Well, it will do no harm to have it read, the
whole thing in case the reading of the whole passage changes
his answer. If it doesn’t
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A. No, sir, and it was the same as I was presented with
on Friday.

The Court: Well, if you are not familiar with it, that is
the answer, and we won’t permit it to be read.

A. No. This is identical with what you brought in in
another form on Friday.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. That’s right, but in a different year. That was in 1930
and this is in 1946.

A. But it is still the same as the 1930.

Q. Now, you say that the Communist Party does not in-
tend to achieve its objectives with violence, is that right?
[fol. 2176] A. That is right.

Q. And, of course, you are familiar with ‘‘State and
Revolution’’ by Lenin?

A. That is right.

Q. And I am going to read page—read from here (indi-
cating).

A. What do you want me to read?

Q. I want you to read—I direct your attention to the last
sentence on Page 19 and the rest of the paragraph on Page
20. I just want to direct your attention to that.

A. All right.

Q. Now, this book is used in Party classes?

A. That is one of the Marxist classics.

Q. But this is one used in Party classes?

A. This is one that is used; there are thousands of books
used.

Q. I'am going to read, as I have indicated, and direct your
attention to this part of the book: ‘“We have already said
above i

Mr. Nelson: What page?

Mr. Cercone: Page 19, the last sentence on Page 19.
The Court: What is the exhibit number again?

Mr. Cercone: It’s Exhibit 20, your Honor.

[fol. 2177] Mr. Cercone:

Q. ““We have already said above and shall show more
fully later that the teaching of Marx and Engels regarding
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the inevitability of a violent revolution refers to the bour-
geois state. It cannot be replaced by the proletarian state
(the dictatorship of the proletariat) through ‘withering
away,’ but, as a general rule, only through a violent revolu-
tion. The panegyric sung in its honour by Engels and
fully corresponding to the repeated declarations of Marx
(remember the concluding passages of the Poverty of Phi-
losophy and the Communist Manifesto, with its proud and
open declaration of the inevitability of a violent revolution;
remember Marx’s Critique of the Gotha Programme of 1875
in which, almost thirty years later, he mercilessly castigates
the opportunist character of that programme)—this praise
is by no means a mere ‘impulse’, a mere declamation, or a
polemical sally. The necessity of systemically fostering
among the masses this and just this point of view about
violent revolution lies at the root of the whole of Marx’s
and Engels’ teaching. The neglect of such propaganda and
agitation by both the present predominant social-chauvinist
and the Kautskyist currents brings their betrayal of Marx’s
and Engels’ teaching into prominent relief.

“‘The replacement of the bourgeois by the proletarian
state is impossible without a violent revolution. The aboli-
tion of the proletarian state, i. e., of all states, is only pos-
[fol. 2178] sible through ‘withering away’.

““Marx and Engels gave a full and concrete exposition of
these views in studying each revolutionary situation sepa-
rately, in analysing the lessons of the experience of each
individual revolution.”’

Now, do you say that does not advocate a violent revolu-
tion?

A. That is right.

Q. Now, I show you

A. AsIexplained to the jury in my direct testimony.

Q. I show you the ‘‘Dictatorship of the Proletariat’’,
and which is Commonwealth’s Exhibit—I think it’s 168, the
“Dictatorship of the Proletariat’’ written by Lenin and
found in the Communist Headquarters, as was the other
book.

Mr. Nelson: Isn’t this Exhibit No. 17?
Mr. Cercone: Yes, it is, but there are three or four marks
on it.
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. Exhibit No. 17, and direct your attention to Page 49—
Now, I direct your attention to the same book, Page 52—1I
direct your attention to Page 69.

Now, the first page I directed your attention to was 49:

“‘Can such a radical transformation of the old bourgeois
[fol. 2179] system of society be achieved without a violent
revolution, without the dictatorship of the proletariat?

““Obviously not. To think that such a revolution can be
carried out peacefully within the framework of bourgeois
democracy, which is adapted to the domination of the bour-
geoisie, means one of two things. It means either madness,
and the loss of normal human understanding, or else an
open and gross repudiation of the proletarian revolution.’’

Now, you say that doesn’t call for violence?

Mr. Nelson: It talks about Russia. Doesn’t it talk about
Russia?

Mr. Cercone: Yes, and using it in classes every day.

The Court: Who are you directing your attention to, Mr.
Cercone, the defendant?

Mr. Cercone: Only because he is directing his attention
to me.

Mr. Nelson: That talks about a different place.

[fol. 2180] The Court: Refrain yourselves from arguing
across the counsel table and limit yourselves to the issues
before you in cross-examination of this witness.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, does that advocate forcible and violent revolu-
tion?

A. As I replied in direct testimony——

Q. I am just asking you, does that advocate forcible and
violent revolution?

A. I am answering your question. As I stated in two
days of direct testimony, in thirty excerpts dishonestly pre-
sented, as this one is in the indictment, these excerpts are
written during 1917 and 1919, most of them in Russia. That
is point No. 1.

Point No. 2: These refer to the fact that generally which
is included in the excerpt you made, not always, generally,
when a majority of the people have become convinced,
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through life and through the intolerable conditions of life,
they desire a different system of society, a different or-
ganization of life and when they express this desire will-
ingly and peacefully; always hitherto they have been set
upon with violence and terror, I said, and I say again the
counter-revolutionists, the reactionaryists, the minority, the
handful resort to force and violence in order to block, in
[fol. 2181] blood, the desires of the majority of the people.

Q. Is that what that says?

A. Yes.

Q. That’s all I want to know.

A. Tt says something else. Do you want me to answer this
question?

Q. All right, finish it.

The Court: Well, we don’t want you to repeat all of your
direct testimony on it, Doctor.

Mr. Nelson: Your Honor, I submit that the quotations
were brought in by direct testimony:

The Court: They were fully discussed by the Doctor on
direct examination.

A. In many cases the same quotation.

The Court: That is the reason I didn’t want you to repeat
in full your direct testimony but rather this is your con-
clusions drawn from the previous discussion of them that
he was soliciting at that time.

[fol. 2182] Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, you have given this statement several times that
this book was written:

A. No, I didn’t say that at all.

Q. Was used or applicable—what did you say about this
book?

A. I said the excerpts you cited——

Q. You said something about the time this book was
written.

A. 1’1 tell you exactly what I said. The excerpts which
you quoted were excerpted from statements made in 1919
to 1920.

Q. And this book here is printed in 1936, is that right?

A. The volume, yes, sir.

Q. Now, I read this
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A. The Declaration of Independence was written in 1776
and is still reprinted and you cannot understand it unless
you know that it was written in 1776.

Q. Let’s not argue about that.

A. I’m not arguing, I’'m trying to instruct—

The Court: Refrain from instructing.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, you say you looked at Page 52, and I will read it
for you. “‘The scientific concept, dictatorship, means
nothing more nor less than power that directly rests on
violence, that is not limited by any laws or restricted by an
absolute rules . . . Dictatorship means—not this once
[fol. 2183] and for all, Messrs. Cadets—unlimited power,
resting on violence and not on law. During civil war, vic-
torious power can only be dictatorship.”” Now, I will just
ask you this question. Does that advocate violence?

A. No, it refers to the civil war. I will give you a quota-
tion almost the same as that from Thomas Jefferson.
Would you like me to give it to you?

Q. Let me ask you this. When Aaron Burr advocated
the revolution, didn’t Thomas Jefferson arrest him and put
him in jail?

A. He never advocated a revolution.

Q. What did he advocate?

A. Counter-revolution. He advocated treason; he advo-
cated going back to monarchy. Do you want to ask me about
Aaron Burr or don’t you?

Q. You’re not testifying

A. You were asking me the questions and didn’t you tell
me about Aaron Burr? 1’ll tell you about Aaron Burr.

Q. Tell us about the Soviet Union.

The Court: I am admonishing both you gentlemen, both
the District Attorney and the witness likewise to limit him-
self to questions and you to answers.

[fol. 2184] Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now, on Page 69 Lenin said, ‘‘Today, in 1917, in the
epoch of the first great imperialist war, Marx’s exception

71—10
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is no longer valid. Both England and America, the greatest
and last representatives of Anglo-Saxon ‘liberty’ in the
whole world, in the sense that militarism and bureaucracy
are absent, have tod-y plunged headlong into the all-
European, filthy, bloody morass of military bureaucratic
institutions to which everything is subordinated and which
trample everything underfoot. Today, both in England
and America, the essential thing for every real people’s
revolution is the smashing, the destruction of the ‘ready-
made’ state machinery (brought in those countried, between
1914 and 1917, to general ‘European’ imperialist perfec-
tion.”’

Does that advoecate violence?

A. The answer to that is the same as my previous answer.
Please observe that the quotation begins in 1917,

Q. ‘““The proletarian revolution is impossible without the
forcible destruction of the bourgeois state machine and the
substitution for it of a new one.”’

Does that advocate violence?

A. No.

Q. Now, I show you—I think it’s Commonwealth’s Ex-
hibit No. 21, being the ‘‘History of the Communist Party
of the Soviet Union’’ which you stated in your direct testi-
[fol. 2185] mony that Joseph Stalin was one of the writers,
is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And I show you Page 9

The Court: What exhibit?

Mr. Cercone: I think it’s 21, your Honor.
The Court: Page 97

Mr. Cercone: Yes.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. I read this from ‘‘History of the Communist Party of
the Soviet Union’’ which was found in the Headquarters of
the Communist Party of Pennsylvania, under the control of
Steve Nelson: ‘‘Marx and Engels taught that it was impos-
sible to get rid of the power of capital and to convert capi-
talist property into public property by peaceful means, and
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that the working class could achieve this only by revolu-
tionary violence against the bourgeoisie, by a proletarian
revolution, by establishing its own political rule—the dicta-
torship -of the proletariat—which must crush the resistance
of the exploiters and create a new, classless, Communist

Society.”’
Does that advoecate violence?

[fol. 2186] A. In the same way I explained many times
for the two and a half days, it does not in the sense you are
using it, this definitely does not.

Mr. Cercone: May we have a recess at this time? There
is a quotation that I would like to find.

The Court: However, if you wish to resume at one instead
of 1:15, we will lose no time.

Mr. Cercomne: That will be all right, your Honor.

The Court: We will recess until 1:00 o’clock.

Noon recess.

[fol. 2187] Monday, January 21, 1952.

Afternoon Session

Dr. HerserT APTHEKER recalled.

Mr. Cercone: May we come to side bar, your Honor.

The Court: Come forward.

Mr. Cercone: Your Honor, I would like to argue this
point made out concerning this witness with the expression
about members of the Party and if I could we could recess
the members of the Jury for half an hour.

The Court: Do you have any cases on it?

Mr. Cercone: I don’t have any cases but we are working
on it at the library, but I would like to get something on the
record, and there is no use of holding up the Jury.

The Court: We generally don’t take down the arguments
made.

Mr. Cercone: We discussed that in the District Attorney’s
[fol. 2188] office here and we come to this conclusion that the
witness gave his opinion on Communism and he gave an
opinion on excerpts taken from books—Lenin is not here—
Stalin is not here. He gave an opinion on lack of associa-
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tion of the Communist Party of the United States for the
Communist Party in Russia.

He pointed to certain language in books and said the very
clear language therein meant something else.

We have a right to confront him with material, as an ex-
pert, he is supposed to be familiar with it or if he subscribed
to that statement.

Mr. Nelson: You asked that and he told you whether he
agreed or disagreed. He told you how he started and how
he understands it.

Mr. Cercone: This is done in Court every day. A medi-
cal witness takes the stand and says that in his opinion a
certain injury will lead to certain complications. The cross
examining attorney then picks up a book on that subject and
[fol. 2189] questions him on that book and asks him whether
he agrees with that or not. If the witness says he doesn’t
know the book and he is asked if he agrees what is therein
and he says no or negatively. He does that since the wit-
ness has built himself up as having knowledge of the ma-
terial about which he testified. How else are you going to
break down the testimony of an expert witness the Com-
monwealth believes is lying. An expert witness for the
defense may say that a bullet fired from a certain gun will
do certain things. He qualifies as an expert on that. Cer-
tainly the Commonwealth is permitted to question him to
show that the bullet will not do those certain things, and the
Commonwealth’s attorney may cross examine the defense
witness on all phases or knowledge concerning that par-
ticular testimony.

Now this witness has testified concerning his knowledge
of the advocacy of the Communist Party of the United
States. We have a right to confront him with a statement
made by the very National leader of his Party. We have a
[fol. 2190] right to ask him if he subscribed to that. We are
not saying that that is substantive evidence but have a right
to ask him.

In the present case the defendant was permitted to cross
examine Judge Musmanno about a statement made by Al
Capone, about what he thinks of Al Capone. He held a
piece of paper in his hand and asked if he subscribed to the
statement and Judge Musmanno said, ‘‘Tell me what it is.”’
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Mr. Nelson: He didn’t have to bite. It wasn’t my fault.
It is his hard luck.

Mr. Cercone: Musmanno had to answer that.

Mr. Nelson: As I recall the Court didn’t say he must an-
swer it.

Mr. Cercone: He asked if he agreed to the statement
read to him by the defendant and Musmanno was compelled
to answer. Why should this witness who was treating upon
the entire subject of Communism during the time he was a
member since 1939, not be required to answer questions on
the material issue of its case as an expert? He can’t plead
[fol. 2191] ignorance to it. If he pleads ignorance then he
may be asked if he agrees with the opinion or facts stated
in the statement with which he is confronted.

Mr. Nelson: May I make this point. I think I know what
Mr. Cercone has in mind. He wants to raise a point here
that at one time Foster wrote about and later on he stated
his position was wrong and rejected that position.

The Court: He is not here to explain and this witness
doesn’t know anything about it.

Mr. Nelson: T can’t see why he, at one time, held one
view. I refuse to have you interpret his principles or to
discuss them.

The Court: If you want to risk getting a denial that such
and such is a policy and on them to have him as a qualified
witness you may do so, but I won’t let you subseribe to it
being a policy of the Party or of the leaders, unless it is
shown in evidence or if something is found in this defend-
[fol. 2192] ant’s possession. I will review it overnight and
see if there are any changes in my opinion.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. I show you Commonwealth’s Exhibit No. 60, being a
letter to the American Workers, written by V. 1. Lenin,
copywrited in 1934.

Mr. Nelson: When was it printed?

Mr. Cercone: The second printing was in 1935.

The Court: What exhibit number?

Mr, Cercone: No. 60, a letter to the American Workers.
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Mr. Cercone:

Q. And direct your attention to that circle. This is a let-
ter to the American Workers for the class struggle and revo-
lutionary times because always inevitably and in every coun-
try taken on the form of civil war and civil war is untenable
without the worst kind of destruction, without terror and
formal declaration or formal democracies and interests of
war. That was on page 16.

Does that advocate force and violence, something written
by Lenin in 1918, and does it advocate force and violence.
for example. Would you answer a simple question?

[fol. 2193] A. If you ask me if I were off the bank, I
could answer yes or no but when you ask about social
science I can’t answer yes or no.

Q. That particular excerpt there represents force and
violence ?

A. No.

Q. Now, Mr. Witness, how long have you been in the
Party?

A. Since 1939.

Q. Have you held any positions in the Communist Party
of the United States of America, any official positions?
No.

. You have not been a district organizer?

. I have held no positions in the Party.

. And you haven’t been on any district board?

No.

. You haven’t been on any National Committee of any
?

No.

You haven’t been a member of the National Board?

No.

Have you ever been a member of any district Board?

No.

Have you ever been in the Communist Party of the
Umted States of Western Pennsylvania from let us say
roughly, August, 1948 until August, 19502

A. A member of the Communist Party of Western
Pennsylvania?

Q. Yes.

W
oroporioporer
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A. No, I have not.

Q. And during that period of time who were the National
officers?

[fol. 2194] A. From 1948 to ’50?

Q. Yes,

A. William Z. Foster, Mr. Eugene Dennis, Mr. Gus Hall,
Mr. John Williamson and others.

Q. All right. Do you know of any——that is Winnery
Winston, he would be in there?

A. Yes, Mr. Winston.

Q. And Bill Davis, Jr., and Calvin Green?

A. Yes.

Q. I am just asking you: do you know whether or not
during that time the Party held any classes in school, that
is the Jefferson School for anything like that, being Party
classes?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know whether or not, or did you teach at any
of those classes?

A. T taught at some classes held by the Party.

Q. Where?

A. At the Jefferson School

Q. I am not talking about the school, the Jefferson
School. I am talking about the classes, the Party held in
the whole district?

A. The classes I taught were at the Jefferson School.

Q. But you didn’t teach elsewhere?

A. No.

Q. So that you have never heard of anybody teach in any
place else except in the Jefferson School. Is that right?
[fol. 2195] A. Of course not.

Q. I mean in the Communist Party, you never heard or
never took part in any class work, any class teachings
except your work in the Jefferson School?

Mr. Nelson: I think you testified you gave lectures.
Mr. Cercone: Just a minute now.
The Court: Don’t interrupt, Mr. Nelson.

A. T taught classes of the Communist Party at, and call
them classes which I taught of the Communist Party were
tanght at the Jefferson School and I lectured there.

Q. That is all, thank you.



1128

The Court:

Q. The distinction of lecturing and teaching?
A. No, sir.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. I may ask you just one question—of course you do
get paid for your teaching?

A. No.

Q. How do you make a living?

A. T am paid as editor for Masses and Mainstream.

Q. As editor for Masses and Mainstream?
[fol. 2196] A. Yes.

Q. You say you don’t get paid for teaching?

A. Not at the Jefferson School, no, sir.

Q. Is that a full time schedule?

A. T each four classes, an hour and a half each—what
does that add up to, six or eight hours?
A week?
. Yes.
You are paid as editor for Masses and Mainstream?
. Yes.
A monthly wage?
. Weekly wage.
And your wage is going on now, is it?
. Yes, I hope so.
Now you testified here concerning the Constitution
of the Communist Party of the United States and you said
that it was based on the ideas of certain individuals and
you told us about Ruttenberg?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you mention the fact that Ruttenberg had spent
time in Sing Sing Penitentiary?

Mr. Nelson: That is objected to. If it did happen it
happened 30 years ago.
The Court: The objection is overruled.

OPOPOPOFO

[fol. 21971 A. Do you want an answer?

Q. Yes.

A. To the best of my knowledge. The testimony I gave,
1 said that he had gone to prison but I don’t believe I
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named the prison. That could be checked, I assume, of
what I said.

Q. You said his body was shipped to Russia and buried
in the Kremlin—did you know that?

A. T am not certain I know that, no.

Q. Now you say you are associated with Masses and
Mainstream and you wrote this article on Korea here?

A. That is right.

Q. I direct your attention to this sentence on page 11,
that is Commonwealth’s Exhibit No. 43?

A. Yes.

Q. You said, and I quote: ‘“Yes, for every tortured
Korean Patriot, for every violated Korean woman, for
every famished Korean child, the American ruling class,
the American Government is guilty.”” Do you agree with
that statement?

A. Yes, I agree with that statement. That is mild com-
pared to what language Lenin said about the Mexican War.

Q. And of course this cartoon appears in the midst of
that story?

A. That is right.

Q. And you gave approval to that?

A. Probably so. I can’t say so definitely. I am not the

art editor.
[fol. 2198] Q. You say that, that for every tortured
Korean patriot, for every violated Korean woman, for every
famished Korean child, the American ruling class, the
American Government is guilty.”” And isn’t that holding
the American Government in hatred and contempt?

A. The American Government? This is a synanom.

Q. You say it is not holding the United States in con-
tempt and hatred ?

A. No.

Q. You say for every famished Korean child you say
the American Government is guilty. Do you say that
isn’t quoting the American people up to ridicule and
hatred?

A. Just exactly the contrary.

Q. Why?

A. Because that article clearly associates.

Mr. Cercone: That is objected to. That is improper.
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Mr. Nelson: Let me have what you are reading?

A. This article clearly disassociates the American
people from the other group.

Q. You mention the American Government?

A. Yes.

Q. What is the American Government?
[fol. 21991 A. It is basically the instrument of the ruling
class.

Q. That is what you Communists say?

A. Yes, it is my belief.

Q. You say it isn’t holding the American Government
in hatred and contempt?

A. Tt is just the opposite. I said here it is mild to what
the language was said about the Mexican War, or do you
remember of the other great patriots?

Q. Nor did I remember the advocating and overthrow of
the American Government?

A. Nor do L

Q. What circulation does this book have? Is it just
circulated in the United States or outside?

A. An International periodical and it is all over the
world.

Q. So people all over the World read that sentence?

A. Of course. It is basically of course an American
magazine.

Q. All right. I show you Commonwealth’s Exhibit No.
158 found in the Communist Headquarters, under the
control of Steve Nelson, a newspaper called ‘‘For Lasting
Peace, for a People’s Democracy,’”” and 1 direct your at-
tention to this article.

A. Do you want me to read the whole article?

Q. Just look at it, it isn’t that long.

The Court: Is that an exhibit? ‘

Mr. Cercone: Yes, that is Exhibit 158, dated August 4,
1950.
[fol. 2199a] A. All right, I have glanced at the article.

Mr. Nelson: Your Honor, I object to this procedure. If
I was a lawyer he would show me the thing. He is treating
me like I have no rights in that.



1131

The Court: Anytime you want to see anything just ask
the Court and it will be granted.

Mr. Cercone: You know the paper better than I do.
There are many editions you have sold and circulated it
all over the place.

The Court: There are many editions and I don’t know
what copy you have, Mr. Cercone.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. All right now, I read what you said in this newspaper:
‘‘American generals are trying to ‘excel’ one another in
the maltreatment and barbaric annihilation of Korean
women, the aged and the children. The name of the blood-
thirsty Walker—a war criminal and the hangman of the
Korean people—will indignantly be granded by everyone
in the world. Being in command of the U. S. land forces
[fol. 2199b] in Korea, he ordered all peaceful citizens to be
driven behind the lines of the American Army and their
houses to be destroyed as the Hitlerite troops did in their
time. All who show unwillingness to leave with the Ameri-
can Army, Walker orders to be shot on the spot. Over
three thousand of the non-comfatant population, over three
thousand peaceful citizens were shot in the towns of
Pyongtaek, Chonju, Suwon and Unsang.”’

Do you know who he is?

A. Yes.

Q. The head of the forces in Korea and was killed there?

A. Yes.

Q. And the body was taken back here and laid to rest in
the Arlington Cemetery?

A. Yes—it was laid to rest in the hero’s cemetery.

Q. It was laid to rest in the hero’s cemetery?

A. That is right.

Q. And you say that isn’t holding the people of the
United States and the United States Government in hatred
and contempt?

A. No. It is not. Read the sources quoted and what
the New York Times said.

Q. In one place: ‘““In one sense, that Wonsan, American
savages destroyed a rest home with 170 of its inmates, a
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hospital and a railway polyclinic where many sick and doc-
tors were killed.”” ‘“When the U.S.-British imperialists
[fol. 2200] launc-ed their intervention in Korea they reck-
oned on a lightening victory which would have enabled them
to make a slave of the Korean people, and transform the
Korean peninsula into a military outpost for unleashing
war against the camp of Socialism and democracy.’’

Q. You say that isn’t holding the United States Govern-
ment up to hatred and contempt?
A. By declaring it an unjust war?

Q. You say it is not hatred and contempt?

A. It is citing things much milder made in a report in
the New York Times and the Tribune what is done in
Korea. It doesn’t hold up to contempt the American
people.

Q. Isn’t it true you Commounists are doing it?

A. I am not doing anything. You know I have nothing
to do with that paper.

Q. Does this hold the United States Government up to
hatred and contempt?

A. No, it does not.

Q. This about General Walker being in command of the
United States Land Forces in Korea, he ordered all people,
citizens to be driven behind the lines of the American Army
and their houses to be destroyed as the Hitlerites troops
did in their time. Would you say that it holding the
American Government up to contempt?

A. This is what has been reported by Look magazine and
the Saturday Evening Post, and if the American people
would appreciate the atrocity required in an unjust war it
[fol. 2201] would help in a move to call a halt to this merci-
less and unjust war.

Q. You say it isn’t holding it up to hatred and contempt?

A. Tt is not.

Q. I show you the political affairs magazine found in the
Communist Party of the Western Pennsylvania, under the
control of Steve Nelson—Hixhibit No. 98, and reads an ex-
cerpt on page 10¢%

A. T have read it.

Q. Of August, 1950%
A. Yes.
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Q. And I quote: ‘“‘In Korea the people have had the op-
portunity to witness the liberating role of the Soviet Army
as contrasted with the chauvinist enslaving role of the
American military authorities.”’

You say that isn’t holding the United States up to hatred
and contempt?

A. No, it isn’t.

Q. Now then the Political Affairs

A. Did you tell the Jury about what period that is being
written?

Q. This is written in August, 1950¢

A. That paragraph you just read to what has it refer-
ence?

Q. To what?

A. The paragraph just read, what period?

Q. What period does it have?

A. That is important to know. It is important for the
jury to understand.

[fol. 2202] Q. It is June 28th, isn’t it?

A. That has reference to the prior beginning of present
hostilities.

Q. It hasn’t any difference?

A. Tt does.

Q. It still ridicules the United States.

A. Tt doesn’t.

Q. What difference does it make? When it criticizes the
United States and praises the Soviet Union?

A. Certainly it makes a great deal of difference.

Q. All right, now you say

Mr. Cercone: Your Honor, may we have a side bar?

The Court: Come forward.

Mr. Cercone: Here is a series of questions 1 would like
to ask here. He says there is no connection with the Com-
munist Party of Russia and T would like to ask a question
if that is so, is there any reason why the Communist Party
members would refuse to ask this kind of question.

The Court: Who refused?

Mr. Cercone: The defendant.

[fol. 2203] The Court: When?
Mr. Cercone: In 1946.
The Court: It is not in the realm of cross examination.
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Mr. Cercone: I have a few more questions and maybe we
can hold him until tomorrow morning for another problem.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Now getting back to this one problem in here—you
stated that the Communist Party intends, or does the Com-
munist Party intend to achieve its objective by election?

A. Fundamentally, yes, it does.

Q. Now I show you Problems of Leninism, Exhibit 58—
now on page 22, Problems of Leninism, written by Joseph
Stalin, this was found in the Communist Party’s headquar-
ters: ‘‘The class which has seized political power has done
so conscious of the fact that it has seized power alone.
This is implicit in the concept of the dictatorship of the
proletariat. This concept has meaning only when one class
kno-s that it alone takes political power into its own hands,
and does not deceive either itself or others by talk about
popular, elected government, sanctified by the whole peo-
ple.”’ (Collected Works, Vo. XXVT, p. 286, Russian edition.)

Q. Does that exemplify the Communist Party’s program
which achieves its objectives by means of election?

[fol. 2204] A. That has no reference to that and is an
illustration. It points out the majority character.

Q. Not through election?

A. Yes.

Q. That 1s what you say?

A. Yes, that is right.

Q. Do you subsecribe to this statement—‘‘No Communist,
no matter how many votes he should secure in a national
election

Mr. Nelson: Where is this from and let us see where it
is from?

The Court: That comes within the class of questions of
the admissibility and I told you I would rule on it tomor-
row morning.

Mr. Cercone: We will refrain until tomorrow morning.

The Court: Yes, and ask the witness to remain subject
to cross examination and then if you are through cross
examining you may resume direct examination or with-
draw him.
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Mr. Nelson: I have another witness who may be brief
[fol. 2205] on another matter.

(Witness withdrawn.)

Mr. Cercone: I would like to have an offer at side bar.

The Court: All right. We will ask you to make an offer.

Mr. Nelson: I want to show that the books that are on
trial here have been available and are available in the
usual places, libraries and other places and I just want
to ask a few questions about that.

Mr. Cercone: That is objected to as self-serving.

The Court: The objection is overruled.

Mr. Cercone: This is something like the case where a
man is charged with the murdering of the wife.

Mr. Nelson: There is no murder here.

The Court: The jury is entitled to know all about the
[fol. 2206] books. The objection is overruled. You may
proceed.

Herman E. Saver, called by defendant, having been first
duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct examination.
Mr. Nelson:

What is your name?

Herman E. Sayer.

Where do you live?

9921 Claybourne Street, Pittsburgh 32.

The Court:

Your occupation?

. Investigator.

For whom?

. Carnegie Library of Pittsburgh.

PO PO

O O

Mr. Nelson:

Q. Are you at the present time employed for the Car-
negie Library, sir?
A. T am, yes, sir.
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Q. And in the capacity of investigator, is that what you
said?
A. Yes.

The Court:

Q. You are on a subpoena here today?
[fol. 2207] A. Yes.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. Have you brought the books that I asked for to be
brought?

A. There are 18 books in that box you asked for. I be-
lieve there are four or five that were not in or we didn’t
have circulating copies. We found the reference copy, but
there are a few we didn’t have the reference copies of and
couldn’t supply those.

Q. And therefore, you brought those you had on hand
and you couldn’t bring those that weren’t in the library?

A. That is correct.

Q. Can we open those now!?

A. You can.

Q. I believe we will be able to do it without untying these,
so I will just ask you a few questions—amongst those
books you do have the Communist Manifesto, do you not?

A. T believe so.

The Court: Would it be better for him to read a list
of the books he has here.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. You have on exhibit in the library, have you not, and
amongst these books Carl Marks, the Communist Mani-
festo by Carl Marks and Frederick Engles and is called
No. 331M 4383?

A. That is right.

Q. And you have also Foundations of Leninism, have
you not, by Joseph Stalin and it is exhibited?

[fol. 2208] A. I don’t believe it is there.
Q. But you have it in the library normally?
A. We keep it in the library normally, that is correct.
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Q. And do you recall whether or not you have here
Lenin, State, and Revolution?

A. No, I don’t have that there either.

Q. But you do have it in the library?

A. That is correct.

Q- I don’t have to give the numbers—you have them?

A. Yes.

The Court:

By having it in the library I presume you mean the
public has free access to it?
A. Correct.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. And you have The Twilight of Capitalism by William
Z. Foster?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is Exhibit 19 of this trial?

A. Yes.

Q- And you have Socialism and Eutopia by Frederick
Engles?

A. It is not there but in the library.

Q. And you have The Dictatorship of the Proletariat by
Lenin—do you recall having that?
[fol. 2209] A. Yes, it is there.

Q. Do you have a book by Stalin ‘‘Marxism and the Na-
tional Question’’?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is Exhibit 80 in this case.

A. Yes.

Q. Have you a book by Carl Marx, Wage, Labor and
Capital?

A. T am afraid it is not in this group.

Q. Exhibit 81 is here.

A. Yes.

Q. Have you another pamphlet by the same author, Marx,
Value, Price and Profit?

A. That is not there but we have it in the library.

Q. Do you have a pamphlet, War of National Libera-
tion by Joseph Stalin?

A. Yes.

72—10
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Q. Do you have a pamphlet by V. I. Stalin called *“Will
the Bolsheviks Retain State Power’’?

A. Yes, it is there.

Q. Do you have copies of magazines known as ‘‘Masses
and Mainstream’’ for the year 1950%

A. Yes.

Q. I believe it is a bound copy, is that right?

A. That is right.

Q. Do you have a magazine known as Political Affairs for
the year 19502
[fol. 2210] A. Yes, bound also.

Q. Twelve copies of that?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you have Lenin’s Many Works by Lenin which
goes under the heading of Collected Works?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have several of those?

A. Yes, quite a few.

Q. Do you recall whether you have copies of The Soviet
Constitution?

A. Yes, sir, it is there.

Q. Do you have a pamphlet called Towards the Seizure
of Power by Lenin?

A. T am afraid it is not there.

Q. But you do have it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And do you have one by Marxism called Liberalism,
which is Exhibit 70 in this trial, Marxist and Liberalism?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, are these books available to the public gen-
erally in your library?

A. They are.

Q. They are displayed like any other books people may
want to read or people ask for specifically, they can get
them?

A. That is correct.

[fol. 22117 The Court:

Q. By circulating do you mean take them out or keep
them there and read them in the reference room of the
library?

A. That is correct.
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Mr. Nelson:

Q. And do you know whether or not that is the practice
of most libraries in the United States with reference to
these books— can you get them at the New York City Li-
brary, Fifth Avenue and Forty-Second Streets?

A. I couldn’t answer that question because I am not
familiar with the New York Library, that is all.

Mr. Nelson: Cross examine.

Cross-examination.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. Mr. Sayer, your library doesn’t attempt to edit the
contents in any way?

A. Before they are published for the library?

Q. That is, what is the policy on the selection of the
book?

A. They are usually read by a committee.

Q. Then they are published and in circulation?

A. Yes.

Mr. Cercone: That is all.
[fol. 2212] The Court: You may take the books back if
you wish. Is there any need for them?

(To both Counsel.)
A. No.

The Court: That is all. Witness excused.

Mr. Nelson: Can we approach the bench.

The Court: Come forward.

Mr. Nelson: I would like to ask Mr. Cercone whether or
not he could resume after recess, after a reasonable recess
now, because he would prefer if he got through with him now
and I don’t want to prolong it too long.

The Court: Why persist in asking this witness some state-
ments made by somebody else outside the courtroom. If
they are available and admissible you don’t have to have
them confronted by this witness. All you can ask is an opin-
ion about the policy of it. I don’t know why you would
need to have to establish those facts. In other words,
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[fol. 22131 whether there was no force or violence or con-
nection with Soviet Russia. In order to rebut him maybe
you can offer other testimony. Why prove it by him? Why
prove it by him when you know he is going to deny it?
Mr. Cercone: But I would end my cross examination with
permission to call him back tomorrow.
The Court: He wants to get back to New York tonight.
Mr. Nelson: Yes.

The Court: I still persist in my position on it as to
whether or not it is admissible at all. All you can use this
witness for is to confront him with those statements.

Mr. Cercone: On rebuttal can I ask about it?

The Court: Yes, but you brought it out on direct. You set
it up originally there was a connection and this fellow says
there isn’t.

[fol. 2214] Mr. Cercone: That is why I would like to rebut
his testimony by a rebuttal witness. That is the only pur-
pose, whether or not Foster said it.

The Court: What if Foster did say it?

Mr. Nelson: What if he denied it later on and said he was
wrong? I can’t do it and I would have to get him here and
it is impossible.

Mr. Cercone: Do you think we have enough?

Mr. Nelson: You have 160 books and pamphlets in evi-
dence.

The Court: You can’t cross examine him about a state-
ment Foster made and the book isn’t here or found in the
possession of the defendant.

Mr. Cercone: If I found a citation giving us the right to it
I would be glad to. He could study over the night. He
stayed over the week-end.

Mr. Nelson: You don’t care how much money you spend.
You are spending public money and keeping the stool
[fol. 2215] pidgeons in the hotels. I have to put a man up
and do the best I can. I may not get through that today.
I don’t know.

The Court: If you can submit the book referred to and
he knows about it and he can say he doesn’t know Mr. Foster
made statements contrary to what he is testifying but when
he says he doesn’t know anything about and he doesn’t know
of any other statements made by Mr. Foster. I don’t think
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you can confront him on certain things Mr. Foster said
elsewhere that he is not acquainted with.

The book set forth and certified by Foster is available and
as such as a text book or a book on medicine and you can
ask the witness if he knows about the technique or the au-
thority or something else and he says no, then you will have
to identify that book as a recognized book of the subject
by somebody else before you can read on it. If he says it is
a book generally adopted then you can ask if the theory con-
tained in the book is contrary.

[fol. 2216] Mr. Cercone: Lots of times on cross examina-
tion you can take an expert in fact and ask if he subsecribed.

The Court: You could ask him in this fashion: do you
know of so and so’s theory of uniting policies by this process
or that process and he says no, well then, you can’t go
beyond it and call on the expert to establish that he has ap-
proved of united policies.

Mr. Cercone: Ithought I could ask if he subscribed to cer-
tain statements. :

The Court: That is as far as you can go.

Mr. Cercone: We will complete the cross examination
right now, with the permission if he goes beyond today
we can ask him.

The Court: If there is you can recall him.

The Court: Any further cross examination of Dr. Apthe-
ker?

Mr. Nelson: I want to call Dr. Aptheker.

[fol. 2217] Dr. ApTHEKER, recalled.

The Court: Redirect examination of this witness?
Mr. Nelson: Yes.

Redirect examination:

Mr. Nelson: Now because it was difficult for me to line
up these questions I will more or less have to follow the
pattern that was set here in the cross examinaiton.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. Now in the cross examination here you were asked a
question about the eleven Communist leaders and the ques-
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tion was what they were charged with and what they were
found guilty of. Would you explain the distinction that you
drew from the way the prosectuion inferred as to why they
were tried and involved in the case?

Mr. Cercone: We object to any opinion.

The Court: He has the right to an opinion. Overrule the
objection and answer the question, Doctor?

A. Well, the first point there is in terms of individually
[fol. 2218] repeated names and giving the impression that
they were eleven different trials and eleven different findings
by eleven different juries.

Mr. Cercone: We didn’t give that impression. T asked
if he knew them. At any rate there was such an impres-
sion it was inaccurate and T object to the interpretation.

The Court: There was only one trial?

A. Yes, sir. The second point is that as the prosecutor
first put the question how to his being corrected, he indi-
cated that they had been charged first of all with attempting
the overthrow and then he changed that to advocating the
overthrow.

Mr. Cercone : That is whatever the charge was.

A. And then he changed it to conspiring, advocating and
teaching when he was forced to, indicating this, that there
was no difference.

The Court: You are going a little different in inferring
what the questions are. You may explain the difference.
First, you said you knew of no knowledge or force by com-
munism and now admit you knew of that trial, and are
[fol. 2219] asked if that alters the statement previously
made.

A. Tt doesn’t, sir, but T want to imply myself, not what
Mr. Prosecutor said. T said there was no difference in the
charge. I meant there was.

Mr. Cercone: Tt is a matter of argument and it is not to be
given to the jury.

The Court: There was a conspiracy to overthrow the
Government by force and violence?
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A. Even in the charge there is no overt act indicated.
I want further to make the point that not only is there no
overt act indicated but they are not charged with advocat-
ing or teaching that. They are not charged even by the
Government with conspiracy to advocate and teach. In
other words, the third one is important in terms of under-
standing even the charge. The significance of that is an
added, because in terms of a conspiracy charge

Mr. Cercone: I object to the interpretation of the law.
The Court: This witness is explaining why. He is ex-
plaining the reason for the statement. Go on, Doctor.

[fol. 22201 A. And the point about the conspiracies is that
in order to prove that, because it is a charge of conspiracy,
the actual presence of the defendant, even in terms of ad-
vocacy is not necessary.

Mr. Cercone:

Q. That is actual presence of the defendant?

A. Of the defendant, and that is why and the nine, and
one of the defendants was mentioned a single time, Mr.
Pollack; (Polart); because there isn’t any deed involved
in the charge but depends on what somebody else did and
he heard in terms of the organization, not in terms of the
defendants at all, and the guilt by association made possible
of the conspiracy is further knowledge in the nature of the
indictment. This is the point I had in mind when I was try-
ing to insist on this with Mr. Cercone. Furthermore, in the
terms of the point, not only does this help to resolve the
apparent contradiction which Mr. Cercone had me in, and
I said, ‘“‘Communists do not advocate force and violence.”’

Mr. Cercone: I object to his argument to the jury.
The Court: The objection is overruled.

A. Not only is this part of the explanation but I have two
other things in my mind when I say this. The first thing is
that miscarriages of charges and false findings of juries.
[fol. 22211 Sometimes the best juries in the world are un-
heard of.

The Court: I will limit you on that explanation of why
you don’t know, is supposed to be because you are not bound
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by the finding of the jury and still did not know of any
overt act on the foree and violence.

A. I want to dissent to the opinion.

- The Court: It does’t matter what happens afterwards.
1t is what you know. Did any of the men convicted advocate
force or violence?

A. In my point no. This is what I have in mind.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. Now while you went into this question, both in the
direct and the cross examination—I must ask you the ques-
tion again. Under what circumstances was the book ‘‘State
and Revolution’’ written?

A —

Mr. Cercone: That is objected to as repetitious, your
Honor.

Mr. Nelson: You brought it up.

The Court: It is redirect and if other phases need ex-
[fol. 2222] plaining we will allow the witness to explain.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. Exhibit 20, Exhibit No. 20 of the Commonwealth—
under what circumstances was this booklet written?

A. It was written under the circumstances of a person
in & dilemma, by a man in exile. It was written where there
were no Democratic rights or Democratic liberties.

Q. It was written by Lenin in exile?

A. That is right.

Q. Exiled where, do you recall?

A. He was in exile.

Q. And what was its main purpose, or what was it written
for at that time?

'A. The main purpose of this organ is to assist in the
effort of the vast masses of the people of Russia living under
the intolerable dilemma of the Czar and in the midst of a

war which was causing millions being killed in the First
World War.
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It is written by a great political fighter for freedom and
democracy, this is an effort to bring freedom and democracy
to the people under the Czar State or the tryanny.

Q. Do you mean by that, Doctor, he wrote the book?

Mr. Cercone: That is objected to.

The Court: The objection is overruled. Answer the
question.
[fol. 2223] A. For the purpose of giving an idea of the
Party’s views were in reference to the way they had to make
the next stage in the development to socialism. He ad-
vanced the program to that in his book.

Mr. Cercone: That is objected to.

The Court: The objection is overruled.

A. At that ime, that was in 1917.
Q. In fact, opposition Party leaders were exiled and
declared illegal?

Mr. Cercone: That is objected to.

The Court: He is qualified as a Communist on Marxist
authority. I don’t know if that establishes the history of
Russia or the World generally, does it not?

A. My persuasion is that of a historian.
The Court: I will permit you to answer.

A. It is written at a time of tryanny. It is written at a
time when the Democractic rights were absent and have been
absent, as anyone knows anything about the history in
Russia. It is at the time there was no organization of trade
unions or anything like that.

[fol. 2224] Mr. Nelson:

Q. And then he was suggesting a road, isn’t that a true
remark, Lenin suggesting a road out of that War and ending
Czarist’ tryanny by establishing Marxism?

A. That is correct.

Q. And because there was no right to establish the mat-
ters he advanced a program that the majority of people
would have to establish to become helpful if the Czarists
like it or not?

A. Nothing to prevent it, because the Czarists’ govern-
ment was a government of terror against the people. There
were no rights to the whole business of government by the
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people didn’t even come up. There was no question about
it. This was a tryannical government. Nobody raised the
question of what it would permit. It did permit imperialism
and as-sination.

Q. So the importance of the pamphlet ‘“State and Revo-
lution’’ as immediately written was written for a specific
situation existing, existing in Russia?

A. Yes, it 1s correct.

Q. And insofar as the answer to the question pertaining
to Russia, other people could read it as a historical docu-
ment and take it as they wish and apply it to their own
country?

A. That is correct.

Q. And Marx and Lenin don’t apply?

A. No.

Q. In other words, where there is a right such conditions
[fol. 2225] don’t come up as — came up in Czarist Russia?

A. Certainly not. That is why we lead in the fight to pre-
serve such freedom. That is why we want to preserve and
extend them.

Q. Now then there was a question put to you regarding
the Jefferson School of which you teach, you stated you
teach four different subjects?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What subjects do you teach?

A. 1 teach the history of the American People. 1 teach
the History of Europe. I teach a course entitled ¢‘The
Philosophy of History’’ which is an effort to present the
Marxist view. Also a similar group which is entitled to
historical research. In that course I attempt to help guide
the students as to the methods of historical investigations.
The way of evidence of the libraries available and of the
needs at the present time in the field of history.

Q. What are some of the other courses taught in the
Jefferson School?

A. There are scores of courses taught from the school
building. It is a large school and maybe there are hun-
dreds of courses, I am not sure how many we have. We
have a course on the American History and the Trade Union
Movement and such courses—imperialism and the Negro
people and the Negro questions; painting, cartooning, danec-
ing or philosophical works, such as I teach, philosophy or



1147

history or current events in the Soviet Union, the Korean
country; a course devoted to the West Indies. It is a large
school and there are dozens of courses of all kinds.
[fol. 2226] Q. What does the school specialize in, anything
in particular?

A. I would say.

Q. What do you mean by that? In what way does it differ
if it must, from other schools that you know of?

A. Well, basically, where such is applicable it is a point
of view, a Marxist point of view and its concern which is
reflected of that outlook, it is of all mass movements and
the mass democratic activity, such as the labor movement
or political struggles for democratic rights. It is that type
of history. The history of labor organizations. I would
say this is the distinctive character of that school as com-
pared with other educational institutions.

Q. Do you have an extensive library in that school?

A. Yes, thousands of volumes.

Q. Besides the Marxist book on trial do you have other
books in use in that school?
A. Yes, sir, thousands of books of all kinds.

Q. People read all books that throw a light on a particu-
lar subject they want to bring out?

A. Certainly. For example, my course in American His-
tory there is an outline which students get so they can follow
up the course and with the outline is a list of books and
magazines they should read. I am sorry I don’t have it
with me but it is in that biography. There are dozens of
books referred to like Charles Beard, McMaster and so on.
That is typical of our school.

[fol. 2227] Q. You state it is a Marxist School but has
books being Un-Marxism as well?

A. Yes, it has.

Q. Would I be correct to say that the Marxist books make
up the material available. Is that a correct statement?

A. Yes, that would be correct.

Q. Still it is known as a Marxist School?

A. 1 think that is true, yes.

Q. Well, since the school carries the name of Thomas
Jefferson, in what way does the Jefferson idea come up in
connection with the school?
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A. In many ways. First of all, in certain of the courses
and certainly in the group dealing with American History
and, of course, the name of Thomas Jefferson in our coun-
try’s history is explained and dealt with. Whether one
agrees is another question but the fact Jefferson has been
a giant in our history which is a fact no one can deny or
wants to deny in the teaching of history, for example. In
the terms of Jefferson as I tried to convey it in the direct
testimony, as being a great democrat, as being a leader in
the American Revolution and as being a man who fought
against the elements and unjust wars, and this is the tradi-
tion we are cherishing. And I think in that sense, I think
the Jefferson School has a very apt name.

Q- So the reason for that name is not that you have just
one group about Thomas Jefferson, is it?

A. No.

[fol. 2228] Q. And nobody ever tried to convey that idea
until the prosecution suggested the idea?

A. Yes. I have never heard that before.

Q. Now the prosecution raised the point that Aaron Burr
advocated revolution of this count-y and you disagreed with
him. What is your position and the Communist’ position
of that?

Mr. Cercone: May we approach the Bar just a second?
It is not on this question.

The Court: Come forward.

Mr. Cercone: This seems like sur-rebuttal.

The Court: It is repetitious.

Mr. Cercone: I don’t think it is material and should be
restricted. I cross examined him and now you are trying to
rebut it. The statements are wrong as part of the evidence.

The Court: He is more fully explaining some of the things
you emphasized. How much more of it is there? A lot of it
is repetitious.

Mr. Nelson: I am not going into that. I have no chance
to prepare.

[fol. 22291 The Court: What is the difference? This wit-
ness is going out of town and he doesn’t want to hold him
here. You may proceed.

Mr. Cercone: I want to object to the statement about
Aaron Burr.

The Court: The motion is overruled. Proceed.
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The Court:
Q. What is your position about Aaron Burr?

Mr. Nelson:

Q. I mean the way it was brought out here?

A. The point I was objecting to what Mr. Prosecutor
was saying, was that he made Aaron Burr out to be a rev-
olutionist and was trying to indicate that Thomas Jefferson
arrested him. Didn’t he? He failed and did not succeed.
What he did get at is that Aaron Burr was the leader, not of
a revolution, but was the leader of a counter-revolution
which is precisely the point. That is, he did not seek the
extension of democratic rights and freedom; he fought a
recession or going back to monarchy. It is because he was
a counter-revolutionist that he wanted to go backward in-
stead of forward. He didn’t try to take the message to the
people and tried to persuade them. He acted secretly with a
[fol. 2230] small clicque or handful of people. He gathered
in arms what he thought was reactionary, and he thought
not in mass operations and exactly the opposite. That sub-
stance substantiates the report of the reactionary force and
violence, the fact they don’t go to the people because of the
quality they wanted. He wanted a monarchy, therefore, he
turned to a small group, to force and violence, a revolu-
tionist. Thomas Jefferson had him arrested. It had no
mass support at all.

The Court:

Q. That is the same theory, Doctor, I suppose, as the
Southern Slavists, as being counter-revolutionists under
Lenin?

A. That is what I tried to explain when you asked that
question.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. So now there was a statement made here that the
Communist Party of the United States and the Communist
Party of the Soviet Union and other countries were to-
gether in one organization known as the Communist Inter-
national. When did that type of set-up end so far as you
know, Doctor Aptheker?
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A. To the best of my knowledge, 1941.

Q. Does that mean that Communists in the United States
interest ceased to have a World outlook on or International
view?

A. No. Ttisa part of a working class, or working classes’
outlook.

Q. What do you mean by that? Would you explain it,
please?

A. Well, T mean in essence, for example, what Lenin
meant. He said that the closest bond uniting people other
[fol. 2231] than the family should be the bond of the Work-
ing people of the World. T mean by that that to me and
other Marxist-Leninist a true patriot is an Internationalist,
because the needs and aspirations of the mass of the plain
people of the World are basically the same. It doesn’t clar-
ify substantial rights and we insist this implies to all people
everywhere. That is ¢s a common explanation and that is
what we mean by our Internationalism.

Q. Isn’t that part of the reason why Communists are op-
posed to unjust wars?

A. Yes, that is the reason why, certainly.

Q. Is it not a fact that their contention is if it is wrong
to be murdered it is also wrong to murder the other fellow.
Isn’t that right?

A. Yes, that is right.

Q. Now the prosecution raised a point in here from Ex-
hibit No. 50—I am not going through it now—the words
were attributable to Eugene Dennis.

The Court: Before you go into this I think we will give
the jury a recess at this time.

(Recess.)
[fol. 2232] Dr. Aptheker recalled.

Mr. Nelson:

Q. Now the Prosecution brought forward the quotation
from ideas they cannot jail by Eugene Dennis, that is Ex-
hibit 67. Are you familiar with this booklet?

A. Yes.

Q. What is its main import. Will you briefly state the
fact since we haven’t gone into this before?



